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Managers’ Report

The Board of Managers (the "Board™) present their report and the audited consolidaled financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2016 ("2016")

Development of the business

Misys Newco 2 S arl (the "Company®) 1s a inuted tiabilily company domiciled in Luxembourg. The address of
its registered office 15 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

The Company, together with its subsidianes {"Misys™ or “the Group”), was formed by the combination of two
separate acquisitions by Vista Equily Partners in 2012,

The Group's principal activities are the development, management and licensing of a vanely of sofiware
products and solutions 1o customers in the financial services industry. The Group operates globally, including
partnering with other companies to sell and distnbute Misys praducts and solutions,

During 2016, the Group continued lo prowide nussion-critical software to its customers, with those products
being deeply embedded i cusiomers’ operations. Tha financial services market continued to evoive
throughout 2016, with ongotng pressure on banks fo better manage enterprise-wide risk, to introduce new
growth areas and to comply with regulatory requirements

Performance durmng the year

2016 was a strong year for the Group, with a combination of excellent sales execution and disciplined cost
control resulting in a retumn to revenue and profit growth. Continued investment in research and development
("R8D") activibes has allowed the Group to develop and launch a ful suite of inlegrated products, creahing
value-added solutions for customers

Market cenfidence in the Group's offenngs 1s reflecied in the 25 new-name custormners secured in 2018,
coupled with good volume and significant growth of up-sell and cross-sell licence sales to the Group’s existing
customer base. Licence ravenue mcreased by 23% to $253.1m from $205 4m in 2015 and meluded the largest
hcence deals in the Group's history

Disciphned cost management and the benefils from the restructuring programme announced In May 2015 are
reflected in the Adjusted EBITDAC margin improvement to 36.2%, from 33 6% in 2015 Cost management
remains a focus area, hatanced with targeted investment to set the Group up for long-term success and the
benefits of these actions are reflacted in the 2016 results

Throughout 2016, the Group continued to focus on delivering growth and improving operating margins through
investing in product development, sales and marketing, and talent. The Board beheves that the Group will
remaln compedtive within the markets it operates i, due to the quality, breadth 2nd depth of s producls, as
well as its compablive positioning

Research and Development Activity

Qurning the year, R&D gross expenditure befors capitalisation decreased to $108.5m compared to $122 2m in
the pnor year, largely due to the consohdation of efforls into lower cost locatlons and the impact of foreign
exchange movements, whiist improved efficiency of captunng all capitailsable activilles has resdlted in $47.2m
being capitalised, compared with $30.9m in the year ended 31 May 2015 The Group continued to beneflt from
active management of R&D localions, along with benefithing from lower associated costs



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l
Managers' Report for the year ended 31 May 2016

A successfid R&D agenda remains a strategic priority of the Group The markets in which the Group operates
are complex, requiring an effective R&D strategy to support and maintain the competitive advantage which the
Group enjoys. The Group remains committed te the conlinuous devalopment of a portfolioc of market relevant
products which can be delivered on an integrated platform. This agenda will continue inte the next financial
year. Ongoing invesiment in new technology and functionality has, and will continua to, enable the Group to
maintain and strengthen its market-leading posibion and develop its Cloud-based offering to the market.

Throughout 2016, the Group has continued to invest in a Group-wide Product Strategy function, which 1s
tasked with the coordination of tong-term product strategy for all the markets in which 1t operates, in order to
wentfy and accelerale tha development of integration opportunites between preducts for the benefit of its
customers. Integrahon and componentisation of the Group's solutions, backed up by a leading FusionFabric
technology platform, benefits customers of multiple of the Group's products through increased transparency,
reduced implementalion ¢osts. more effeclive decision-making and more efficient operations,

The Group has crealed new products and integrated solutions while extending the functionalty of existing
products The first FusionCapital components and solutions based on the new FusionFabric architeciure were
released this ysar. These provide front and back-office capabilites ncluding pnaing, curve management,
position-keeping, a trade reposiory, collateral management and post-trade processing. FustonBanking
Essence has been extended to mest the requirements of new customers m Europe and Asia and the Digital
Channels offering has been productsed to simplify and eccelerate customer implementations and upgrades
The Corporate Channels offering has been exiended to cover lending and treasury and deliver an integraled.
cross-product expenence lo banks’ corporate customers. The Group continues to improve the quality, security,
usabllity and petrformance of all its solutions Finally. the Group has launched a new programme,
FusionReactor, 1o stimulate and drive innovation. The programme fosters creative grass roots inhovation, and
has generated a number of new ideas, two of which, Crowd Funding and machine learming for trade capturs,
have been adopted and are now fully funded and under development

Key Performance Indicators {“KPis”)

The Group's KPI results for the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 May 31 May Increase /

2016 2015 (decrease}
Revenue ($m) 800.2 880.5 2%
Licence Fees (3m) 2531 205.4 23%
Adjusted EBITDAC" ($m) 3262 286.7 10%
Research and development expenditure? ($m) 109.5 122.2 {10%)
Net cash flow generated from operations ($m) 3058 291.7 5%
Net debt? ($m) 1,764.0 1,757.2 0%
4,683 4,618 1%

Headgount - year end
' Adgjusled Earmings before interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amorisation less the amounts caputalisad in respect of intemally
developed soflware and other adjustments See page 5 for a reconcibaton of operating profi! to this adsted measure
4 Excluding discrationary employee related costs
? Borrowings, oxciuding Preferred Equity Certificatas, less cash and cash equivalents and restricied cash.

Commentary on the Group's KPis is provided as part of the Financiat Review below.
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Financial Review

Resuits

Revenue wcreased by 2% from $880 Sm in 2015 to $900.2m in 2016 largely due to the increase in Licence
Fees ("LF*) revenue This revenue growth was partially offset by the impact of foreign exchange movements
on reported revenues, in particular the strengthening of the US Dollar against the Euro and Pound Sterlng
during the year On a constant-currency basis, calculated by applying current year foreign exchange rates to
prior year resulls, revenue Iincreased by approximataly 8% over the prior year

A 23% growth in LF to §253.1m, compared to 5205 4m in 2015, was largaly due to strong execution, with tha
Group signing 25 new name custorners and a favourable mix of new-name, cross-sell and up-sell deals which
have been a strategic and active focus of the Group

The Board considers LF to be a KPI because 1t is a measure of new business and drves future Mamntenance
fees and, n many cases, new Professional Services ("PS™) revenue. On a constant-currency basis, LF
increased by $57.3m or 29% over the prior year

Maintenance fees decreased by 3% from $474 5m to $458 5m In 2016 due o the impact of foreign exchange
movements of key currencias in relation the US Doflar On a constant cumency basis, Mantenance fees
increased by 3% benefiting from new licences signed in 2015, and annual price Increases in 2016 Customer
retentlon has remalned high at 94% contribuling to the certainly of the Group’s recurring revenue.

PS revenue decreased by $10 Om to $154.4m from $164.4m in the pnor year, largely due to the impact of
foreign exchange but also due to delays in achieving project milestones The Group remains focused on
operational improvements in this business and have recenlly made leadership changes to hghten the linkage
between PS and sales leams and accelerale progress

Adjusted EBITDAC of $326 2m, an increase of 10% from $296 7m i 2015, reflects the growth in revenue and
disciphned cost contral  Adjusted EBITDAC is the key measure of performance used by management, and
also forms part of the financial covenant under the Group's loan facilities. A reconcillation between Adjusted
EBITDAC and operaling profit as per the consclidated financial statements is shown on page 5 of this report

R&D expenditure decreased to $109.5m from $122.2m in 2015, largely dus to the consolidation of
development centres of excellence in cosl affective localions, and the impact of foreign exchanga.

The Group has conducted an annual impairment assessment on the carrying value of goodwill, based on the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit {{CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated The results of
these reviews are disclosed in nole § to these financial statements. On an aggregated basis, the Group has a
significant surplus on the carrying values of its CGUs However, on an individugd basis an raparment charge
of $26.7m has been recorded in 2016 agamnst the carryng value of goodwill aliocated to the Fusionlnvest CGU
and Js included in operaling expenses in the consclidated ingome statement Performance of this CGU during
the year did nol meel the expeclations of management, and tegether with lower than anticipated forecast
revenues and having considered reasonable sensitvities, the Managers have deemed it appropriate to record
this impairment charge in the consolldated income statement.

The Group reported operatng profit of $155 1m compared to $56 3m in 2015, largely due to a decrease In
operating expenses of $79 1m to $745 1m from $824 2m in the prior year 2016 operating profit is inclusive of
$26 7m gocdwill imparment in relation to tha Fusioninvest CGU, whilst the year ending 31 May 2015 was
inclusive of a $80 Om goodwill impairment in ralation to the FusionRisk CGU

Oparating profit includes non-recurring charges of $15.5m (2015: $23.5m) consisting of $0.8m {2015 $1 1m)
of costs related to the acquisition of Cuslom Credtt Systems, LP ("CCS"), and restructuring charges of
$14.7m (2015, 522 4m} Duning the year, the Group continued costreduchion programmes impacting 2 number
of functions and recorded restructunng charges, mainly related to severance costs. In addition, softwere
development costs capitalised during the year increased to $47.2m from $30.9m net of a $3 3m wnte ofl In the
prior year, as the Group improved the efficiency of capluring ali capitalisabie acbvities
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The Group incurred net finance costs of $357 9m, an increase of 6% from $337.3m n the prior year This
ingrease was a result of higher interes! on Preferred Equnty Centificates ("PECs") as 2 result of compounding
interes! charged of $196 9m (2015 $174.4m) which is not cash-settied Fmance costs also comprise $141.4m
(2015: $144 5m) of interest on bank loans and facilites which are cash-settled as they become due

The Group recorded a tax credil of $47.9m {2015: $30 2m charge) largely due to deferred tax credits of
$100.2m (2015. $37.6m) offsat by current taxation charges of $52.3m {2015: $67.8m) The deferred tax credits
relate to the recognimon of deferred tax assets of $72.9m on tax losses that are recoverable against future
profits, $31 5m related to acquired intangible assets and, (54 2m) of other deduclible temporary diffarences.

Financial position

Non-curren! assets of $2,523 3m (2015 $2,613.5m) primarily compnse goodwilt of $1,587 6m (2015
$1.614 1m) and other inlangible assets of $771 4m {2015 $918.8m). A funher $29.8m (2015 $28.7m)
comprise tangible fixed assets, predominantly office furnishings and mnformation technology equipment.

Non-currenl trade and other receivables of $417m (2015 $31.6m) comprise credits on qualified R&D
expenditure, revenue from customers which contractually cannot be bifled within 12 months of the reporting
date, and deposits cutstanding in relauon io offices occupied by staff of the Group

Current assels of $440.7m (2015. $398.6m) Jargely compnse billed and unbilisd receivables of $337 Om (2013
$294.0m) and cash balances of $41 7m (2015 $40.3m}

Net deferred tax liabiliies of $35.1m at 31 May 2016 (2015 $138.8m) primarily ralate to timing differences on
other intangible assels acquired by way of business combinations, and the recognition of prior year losses
where It 1s now sufficiently probable that there will be future profits in the respechve tax junsdiction to utilise the
asset

Other liabililes comprise frade and other payables of $154 Bm {2015 $191 4m) and deferred income of
$247.9m (2015 253.7m). Deferred income is primarily derived from the annuai maintenance and support
which the Group provides to customers and bilis in advance, subsequently recognised over the course of the
sarvice period, and has decreased due to movements in foreign exchange

Net debt

Net debt is defined as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and tash equivalents and restncted cash The
Group excludes PECs from Net debt for consistancy with the financtal covenants under its banking facilites.
Net debt increased by $8.8m in the year to $1,764 Om compared to $1.757.2m in 2015, primarily as a result of
the amortisation of capitalised loan arrangement fees and a $2 9m increase in the US Dellar value of the Euro
184.4m term foan under the First Lian credit facliily due to the strengthening of the Euro against the US Dollar,
This increase was partially offset by the mandatory repayment of $12.8m of First Lien loans (2015: $13.1m)

Cash flow

Net cash flow generated from operations In the year was $305.8m compared to $291 7m in 2015 The
increase s largely due to the higher operating profit generated in 2016 offset by the consumption of working
capital, driven by the timing of licence deals signed during the year

interest paid for the year increased to $177 3m during 2016 compared with $145 1m n the previous year
primanly due to the early repayment of $25 Om of accrued mterest on the Group's First and Second Lien loans
as agreed with the Group's lenders as a means of managing closing cash balances. interest repayments are
largely stable year-on-year for the Groups secured term ioans with some impact from the use of shori-term
facilitlies
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The Group paid $54.0r (2015: $72.5m) of corporation tax dunng the year of which $15 5m (2015; §11 9m)
related to withholding tax levied on payments made to the Group enfilies where the tax could not be recoverad
through the local corporate tax regime, due elther to underlying tax losses, or other restrictions under local tax
law The Group 15 within the scope of corporation tax in the junsdictions it is based in and setltles taxes in
those locations to the extent that there are taxable profits v the country which are not offset by existing tax
losses The principal corperation tax paid was $14.0m (2015 $28.5m) in the United States where remaimng
tax losses were utiised in the year to 31 iMay 2016

The Group used $60 Im of cash for investing activities (2015 $69 5m) largely comprising $47 2m (2015:
$34.2m) expenditure incurred on internally developed sofiware, and the net cash outflow of $11.6m (2015
$6 5m) for the purchase of leasehald improvements, computer equipment and other capital equipment

Net cash of $12.8m {2015 $13.1m)} was used in financing aclivities, being the mandatory repayment of the
First Lien credit facility referred to in Nole 16 with the variance in repayments being caused by the
strengthening of the US Dollar over the Euro on average ovar the course of the year,

Reconciliation between Operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Below 15 a reconcihation between Operating profit and Adusted EBITOAC.

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

2l figures n § milons 2M6 2015
Operating profit 165.1 63

Add back

Non-recurnng charges® 15.5 235
Goodwil impairment 26.7 60.0
Amaorbisation of other inlangible assels 195.8 210.2
Depreciation of properly, plant and equipmeni 10.2 o8
Naet cther foreign exchange gain (30.8) (257)
invesior management fees 2.7 14
Gain on embeddsd derivalives {1.8) (79}
Adjusted EBITDA 3734 3278
Capitahsed software development costs {47.2) (30 9)
Adjusted EBITDAC 326.2 296.7

“Non-recurnng charges consist of acquisiion and Intagratien cosls, and restruciunng retated charges,
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group 15 contining 10 execute 11s vision to transform the global financial services industry by making
financial inshitutlons more resilient, more efficient and more competitive, The Group aims o realise its vision by
butlding word class products and solutions, ensunng continued focus on customer success and satisfaction,
nurtunng a high performance workplace and delivenng sustanable financial performance. Executive
management actively track angd manage a variely of nsks that impact these straiegic imperatives.

The key nsks and associated mitigatton acbvities below do not comprise all the nsks associated with the
Group, and they are not sel oul in any order of prionty. Additional risks not presently known 1o managemant, or
currently desmed to be less material, may also have an adverse effecl on the business
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Changing macro-economic conditrons and impact on customer demand and deal cycles

The glcbal financial services software Indusiry i1s highly competilive and can he adversely impacted by
changing macro-economic factors such as soverelgn indebtedness, economic slowdowns, currency
devaluations, governmental budgetary constramts and polilical :nstability resulting in change in demand of
certamn products, inability to service cerlain markets and an increass [n deal cycles

The impact of macro-econamic factors on tha Group I1s somewhat limited due to a high recumng revanue base
{over 50% of the Group's revenue 1s recurring n nature) from a geographically diversified customer base (over
2,000 customers In 130 countrigs) The Group has low levels of revenue concentration with the top 10
customers contributing 18% of revenues for the year However, long term changes in macro-economic and
political conditions globally or in key regions could adversely impacl the Group's results

Recently, the United Kingdom’s vote fo exil the European Union ("EU") has increasad the uncertainty in the
markets. While 1 s still early to commaent on the nature and extent of the impact this may have on the Group
and its customers, beyond the initial impact of foreign exchange rate movements, it 1s important to note that
any significant changes to the Group’s operaticns are unlikely The Group will continue to consider changes
that are n the best interests of its customers and investors.

Technology investments in financial services software are usually significant in value and the Group has to
compele with various global, regional and local software service providers to win business [n addition, deal
cycles are usually lengthy due to formalised vendor diigence and procurement processes n the financial
services industry This, combined with changing customer requirements and inconsistent sales execution, can
craate difficulties in forecasting the quantum and timing of new licence sales

The Group managss these risks by employing sales teams and sates pariners that are compensated based on
performance, geographically based in key markels supported by product specialists where needed The sales
teams are required to develop and mantain healthy sales pipehnes to allow for histonical deal win rales and
unpredictability in the bming of closing daais While sales pipeline forecasts are subject to regular business
reviews and adjusled for changes n sales dynamics, forecast assumptions of pipefine conversion rates’ and
‘win rates’ can be impacted by factors such as deal sizes, market condions, change in customer behaviour,
product maturily and sales performance resuiting n increased unpredictabllity of new licence sales
performance

Risks related to revenue recagnition

The Group sells complex soluhons and products to customers and needs to exercise reasonable judgements
on the quantum and tming of revenue recognition. This can be parhcularly challenging for large and complex
contracts with multiple commitments. The Group manages these rdsks by using a standard commerciat policy
and ensunng that contractual terms and conditons are approved by the appropriate personnel within the
business In addibon the Group has a dedicaled finance and accounting team that adhere {o revenue and
accounting policies, which are reviewed at leasl annually, to ensure that contracts are accounted on the basis
of International Financial Reporting Standards {iFRS") and generally accepted accounting principles on 2
consistent basis.

A substantial portion of the Group's sales activity has historically been completed in the lafter part of the
financial year and a shortfall In revenue can have a significant impact on profifabilty due to the relatively fixed
nature of the Group's cost base in the short to madum term.

Markel predictions and risks related to product delivery

In a global and rapidly changing market, the Group needs to respond to the changing needs of customers and
regulators by investing in high qualty products and solutons that meet their requirements and are delivered on
tme Over time the Group has built a sofiware portfolio that has grown (o become the broadest range of
solutions focused on the financial services industry.
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The increased demand for Digital Channels solutons, data analylics, Cloud, nsk management and reporting
tools plus the introduclion of regulatrons such as Dodd-Frank, FRTB and EMIR provides the Group
oppoduniies 1o seit new solutions to existing and new customers. This requires the Group to track and predict
global and reqional market requirements, trends and changes in regulations and direct the R&D nivestment in
the nght solutions to ensure maximum return on investment.

While the Group continues to make sigrificant investment in #is products with approximatety 15% (2015, 16%})
of operational costs in the current year invested n R&D, W 1s possipie that some mvesiments sight not detiver
anticipated returns within expected timeframes, dus 10 changes in market conditions, inherent uncertaintles in
accurately predicting requirements for a global market or the fallure to deliver gualty products on ime

The Group manages the nsks related to ongoing product investments and product development through
vanous means including the use of agile product development methodologies, product invesiment reviews,
hiring expernenced product managers and business analysts who understand various market raquirements,
and the use of customer adwisory boargs which bring together key client stakeholders to discuss and validate
the top pnonttes for Misys product roadmaps Over 45% of the Group's staff 1s dedicated to R&D, and the
Group maintamns a strong focus on engineenng excellence, implementing best practice product development
methodologies, tools and processes, and independent product testing and qualily assurance processes
However, the Group could be adversely impacted by unforeseen delays in product development due to
changing requirements, incraased complexily and coding or manufactuning errors, despie lesling prior to
release

Tha Group also invests i acquinng complamentary lechnolagy as evidenced by the previous acquistions of
IND and CCS Acquisitions are inherenlly risky requiring strong due diligence, analysis and integration
processes o ensure projected benefits and synergles are realised. The Group uses dedicated and
expenenced leadership teams with significant experience in corporate development and employs appropriate
due diigence processes when identifying acqusiion targets. While the Group has a track record and
significant experence of integrating acaquired businesses, & may fail to «dentify atl shorteomings or habilites
refated to acquisitions or fail lo reatise alt anticipated benefits and synergles

Risks related to project implementations and customer support

To ensure that customers maximige their return on investment, the Group's products usually need to be
supported by timely implementations, integration with existing customer systems and after-sales support
services In general, system implementations, migrations and integrations can be impacted by unforaseen
challenges in dehiverning solutiens on time and to budgsel. These nsks can also have an adverse effect on the
timing of revenue recogntion.

The Group manages these nsks by the use of services staff and managers with deep domam expertigse,
modular, repeatable and precictable project delivery models and project repertingfforecasting processes. The
Group uses service delivery centres that are co-located with development teams to continucusly refine and
improve imptemantations. However, duse to the length and complexity of secme implsmentations, and the
onguing evolution of product cycles, the Group may face unforeseen 1ssues with services deliveries that can
have an adverse impact on customer satisfaclion and profitabiity. The Group usually invests in services
capabiiihes 1n advance of projecied new licence sales, and an unforeseen decline in sales performance can
have an adverse impact on services profitability,

The Group has increasingly used, and will comtinue to use, the servicas of pariners in order to access new
markels, broker deals and provide full implementation servites to customers This approach to market enables
the Group fo scale its sales organisation quickly to reflect specific market fluctuations, however can at imes
add complexity to contractual arrangements wheraby an additionai patty, being the partner, is involved and
ovligated to perform key activities.
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Customers can choose from standard support or specialised premium support packages based on ther
requirements Many support agreements include service level agresments that the Group needs to comply
with The Group uses trained customer support staff that has deep domain expertise deptoyed m multiple
jocations globally to ensure continucus availatility of appropriate support levels. The Group also uses g
dedicated customer support portal to monitor support gueries However, il is possibie that the Group may not
comply with support service leve! agreements which could have an adverse impact on customer satisfactien,
profitability and customer retention,

Talent management, performance management and employee retention nsks

The Group considers its peopie to be its most important asset and rebes on the continuad service of kay staff
at various levels within the orgamisation to succeed. The Group's talent management systems are used to
support ongoing identificalion, development, fraiming &nd retention of talent and implarnentaton of traiking
programmes to ensure staff skdls remaln relevant and current Regular benchmarking of compensation and
benefils across key markets is conducted to ensure sslaries reaman compelitive

In addition, a strong recruiiment and talent acquisition process is in place 1o ensure high potential tatent is
introduced to the Group where needed. However, the Group could be adversely impacted by the loss of key
talent and il is possible that such losses, if not managed, can be disruptive to the business

The Group uses performance managemant systems fo ensurae individua! and team goals are aligned to
comporate objectives Performance management actions may require workforce restructuring that could be
potentially disruptive to the business, and could be accompanied by increased rastrucluring costs and
temporary reduction in productivity

Liquidity, debt, financial cantrol and forelgn exchange risks

The Group aims to achieve outstanding financial performance to ensure sustalnable avaiability of capital and
liquidity to allow further investments in people, products and services, and appropriate manzgement of the
Group’s debt and fiquidity possion. In addition, the Group carries a significant amount of debt with associaled
interest, repaymant and covenant compliance obligations This means the Group needs lo focus on strong
financial and cash control, budgeting and reliabihty of financial forecasts. The Group has a dedicated finance
and treasury team that asslsts managament In operating Key financial controls over budgets, forecasts and
cash fiow optimisation. Any unforeseen reductions in revanue or increase in costs or liabilties, especially
around seasonal periods of reduced hquidity, may have an adverse impact on the Group's financtal
performance and working capdal posilion.

The Group has operabons in arcund 50 countnes and its customers operate in over 130 countnegs around the
world White the Group's financial performance is measured in US Doliar, a significant amount of the Group's
cash flows are denominated in other currencies particularly Eure, Pound Sterting, Indian Rupee, Pivlippine
Peso, and Australian Dollar based on where significant business is conducted eround the world Any
sigmficant varlations in foreign exchange rates against the US Dollar can have an impact on key financial
performance indicators including revenue. The Group operates a hedging strategy to protect a significant
portion of anticipated net cash flows in key foreign currencies using forward currency contracts. However,
long-term vanations in foreign exchange rates of key turrencies could adversely impact the Group's
profitability
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Security and intellectual property risks

The Group is a provider of financial services software and has 10 ensure appropnate secunty of its infarmation
Technology (IT") infraslructure, products and intelfectual property The Group invests a great dea! of time and
effort in protecting its {T infrastructure and dala, including any sensitive data held The Group's hosting and
Cloud offerings go through external secunty reviews and product secunty and vulnerability testing 1s a part of
lhe sofiware development lifecycle Customers are also increasingly demanding that products contain
appropriate securty measures, even if they are not hosted on the Group's IT infrastruciure High profile
secunty breaches at other companies have increased over ime due to mcreassingly sophisticated cyber-
altacks. A highly sophisticated altack on the Group’s infrastructure or products instalied 1n a customers
anvironment could result in the loss of sanstive wformation or inteliectual property, or damage to customers’
business or regulatory obhigations, and this could have an adverse impact on the Group's compettiveness and
profitabikty

In addiion, the Group’s ongotng development efforts result in the ereation of intellectual propery ("IP*) such as
copyrights, trademarks and patents. The Group also embeds third party software within its product solutions to
customars Whila patenting and other forms of IP protaction are utilised to protect the Group's IP, it 1S possible
that these processes may not be sufficient to prevant IP theft and could resuilt in toss of competitive advanlage
In addition, e Group may face claims from other companies, including patent trolls, claiming infringement or
other misuse of IP nghts Responding to such claims, ragardiess of validity, can be tme-consuming and
expensve and could require the Group to cease selling or releasing certain products

Business continulty and disaster recovery risks

The Group has over 4,600 employees in around 50 locations, including a significant presence in Asia, Europe
and the Amencas. Due to the global nature of the Group's business, a significant natural or man-made
disaster, poltical changas, acts of terrorism, resinctions in trave! or the movement of people or capital could
have an 'mpact on the Group's abilty to continue to provide sufficient services to customers or release
products on lime. While the Group has resilience buslt into its operations with data backups processes, cloud-
based systemns and remote working and has successful track record of managing business continuity incidents
across muitiple locations, the Group's operabons could be impacted by major disasters in key sites or
countries.

Legal, regulatory and litigation risks

The Group operales globally and s subject to vardous regulations and laws in each country including health
and safety rules, data protectton regulations, employmant laws, lax regulations, economic sanctions and the
UK Bribery Acl. The Group employs dedicated internal regional legal teams supported by legal advisors and
expenenced business staff

The Group's global operations, particularly in emerging economigs, increase the risk of inappropriate business
conduct The Group manages this risk through a prescnbed code of conduct, anonymous whistle-blower sites,
anti-bribery traming to relevant staff and regular monitoring of customer facing staff and partners, Whie
comphance with ali significant laws and regulations is monitored by the regional legal teams there remains a
nsk thal the Group may not be comphant with all applicable laws and regulations in every junsdiction

In addition, from bme o time the Group has been subject to liigaton claims from former employees,
customers and business pariners VWhile the Group has appropriate process to manage and account for known
Itigation {none of which 1s currently considered te be material to the Group's results and financial position), any
new and signdicant iitigation in the future could have an adverse impact on financial performance.



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 28.ar.l.
Managers' Report for the year entded 31 May 2016

Managers

The Managers of the Company who were in office during the year and up lo the date of signing the
consolidated financial statements are-

Donald Park
Olivier Hamou
Elvin Montes

Events after the reporting data

As disclosad 1n note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no significant events have occurred since the
reporting date

Going concern

The Managers have reviewed the Group's forecasts and assumptions relevant In determining the
appropnatengss of the going concem basis and, at the fime of approving these consohdaied financial
statements, have a8 reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have access lo adequate
financial resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future While assessing going
concem assumption the Managers noted that the Group has complied with covenant terms since their
mception in May 2012 and believe that it will cantinue to comply with covenant tarms in the foreseeable future
They therefore continue to adopt the going concarn basis of accounting in preparing the consoldated financial
statements, as further discussed in notes to the conaohdated financial statements.

Subsidiary companies

The Group conducts Its activities through subsidiary companies across the world A hst of all subsidiarias is
shown in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments

The financisl sk management objeciives and policies of the Group are sst oul i note 26 10 the consolidated
financial statements

Exemption from audit by Parent Guarantea
The Managers of thae Company have decided to apply for exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee jor some

of its ehgible subsidiartes for the year ended 31 May 2018, as permitted by EU directive. A iist of subsidiaries
applying for the audit exemption under parent guarantee is shown in note 32 fo the consolidated financial

statements

£|vin Montes
Manager
X /O’ré( 'S
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Audit report

To the Shareholder of
Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying coasolidated financial statements of Misys Neweo 2 S.A .l and its
subsidiaries, which comprse the consolidated statemuent of financial positioe as at 31 May 2016, and
the consolidated statement of incone, the consolidated statements of eomprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information

Board of Managers’ responsiblity for the consohdated financial statements

The Board of Managers s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consoiidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of Managers determines is necessary lo
enable the preparation of consohdated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibnlity of the "Réuviseur d'entreprises agréé”

Qur responsibilily 1s to express an opiniop on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ag adopted for
Luxemboury by the “Commission de Survellance du Secteur Financier”. 'Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consohdated fnancial statements are free from material misstaterment

An audi 1ovolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consohdated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
“Rénsenr d'entreprises agréd” meluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
ronsolidated financial statements, whether due to frand or error In making those risk assessments,
the “Réviseur d’entrepnses agréé” considers internal control relevant to the entty’s preparation and
fax presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design sudit procedures that are
appropriate in the circunstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the cntiy’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Managers, as well
as evaluating the overall preseatation of the consolidated financizal statements.

We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ouy andit opiion

[ETVT I — e san 1 L Y P e 4 saeenr cbmard e an ervas awner s Fewan 4 Y@ a sms

PricewaterhouseConpers, Société coopérative. 2 rue Gerhard Mercatar, B.P 1443, L-1a14 Luxembourg
T: -352 404848 1. F  +352 494848 2900, wurw pux.lu

Cahmet de réision agrét Expe tcomptable (autarsaton gouvernementale n®10028256)
R.C.S. Lwxembourg B 65 477 ~ TVA Lif25484518
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Opinion

Ir: our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give 2 true and fair view of the financial position
of Misys Neweo 2 S.Ar] and its subsidiaries as at 31 May 2016, and of their performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in aceordance with Internotional Fmancial Reporting Standards as

adopted by the Enropean Union

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Managers’ report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Managers, is consistent with the
conrolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Luxembourg, 28 July 2016
Representpd by

Laurence Demelenne

i2
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Misys Newco 2 S.arl
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 May 2016

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures an § malions Note 2016 2015
Revenue 1 800 2 8805
Qperating expenses 2 {745 1) {824 2)
Operating profit 155.1 56 3
Finance costs 3 (358.8) (338.1)
Finance income 3 0.9 0.8
Nel finance costs {357.9) (337.3)
Loss before taxation (202.8) (281.0)
Taxation 4 479 {30 2}
Loss for the year {154.8) (311 2}

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2016

Year Year_}
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in § milhons Nole 2016 2015
foss for the year {154.9) {311.2}
Other comprehensive income / {loss):
Items that will not be reclassified to prolit or loss
Actugnal gains recognised 20 0.9 Q0.6
0.9 06
itemns that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or tess
Reclassification of foreign exchange on liquidation or disposal of overseas {32.3) 22
subsidlanes
Tax Income ! (loss) on exchange difference on the translation of faregn 3.5 (5.8)
operations
Exchange differance on the translation of foreign operations 1.2 11.9
Other comprehensive {loss) f income for the year (net of tax)} (26.7) 89
Total comprehensive loss for the year (181.8) (302 3)
Aftributable to:
- Owners of the pargnt {181.6) {302 3)

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these consoiidated financial statements.

13
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2016

ali fiqures in § milllons Nole 2016 2015
Non-current assets
Goodwiil 6 1,587.% 1,614 1
Cther intangible assetls 7 7714 918 8
Property, plant and equipment 8 29.8 287
Inveslments o 2.7 25
Deferred tax assets 10 84.0 9.6
Derivative financial instruments 11 6.1 8.2
Trade and other receivables 12 41.7 31.6
2,523.3 2,613.5
Current assets
Trade and other receivabies 12 3686.2 335.8
Derivative financial instruments L] 8.5 18.5
Current tax asset 34 3.1
Restricted cash 22 0.9 0.8
Cash and cash equivatents 22 41.7 403
440.7 3986
Total assets 2,964.0 3,012.1
Equity and liabilities
Share capltal 13 - -
Share premium 13 104 10.4
Other reserves 14 (1.212.8) {1,031.2
Total equity {1,202.4) {1,020.8)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and olher payables 15 7.3 B.8
Borrowings 16 1,813.0 1,803.7
Prefarred Equity Centificates 17 1,761.7 1,564 8
Denvative financial instruments 11 1.8 1.1
Deferred tax liabilhies 10 119.1 148 4
Provisions 18 3.1 4.0
Deferred income 19 19.1 156
Refiremsnt benefil obligations 20 6.2 87
3,731.3 3,553 1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 147.3 182§
Derlvative financlat instruments 11 4.9 4.0
Current tax liabilities 48.4 523
Provisions 18 5.7 28
Defarrad income 19 228.8 238.1
435.1 479 8
Total equity and liabilities 2,864.0 3,012.1

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these consohdated financral statements

The financial sialemenis on pages 13 ta 59 were approved by the Board of Managers on
and signed on its behalf by

Elvin Montes 14
B (Manager

= 80X 16
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 May 2016

Share Share Other Total
all figures m $ milions capital premibm reserves  equit
Balance at 1 June 2015 - 104 {1,631.2) (1,020.8)
Loss for the year - - (154.9) (154 9)
Other comprehenswe Joss for the year - - (28.7) {28.7)
Total comprahensive loss for the year - - {181.6) {181.6)
Batance at 31 May 2016 . 104 {1,212.8) {1,202 4)
Batance at 1 June 2014 - 10 4 {7289) (7185)
Loss for the year - - (311.2)  {311.2)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 89 B9
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {302.3) (3023)
Balance at 31 May 2015 - 104 (1,031.2) (1,0208)

The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral pari of these consolidated financial statements

13
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Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2016

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May
all figureg in $ millions Note 2016 2015
Operating activities
Net cagh flow generated from operations 2 305.8 2917
Interest paid (177 3) (145.1)
Interest received 0.3 -
Net taxation paid {54.0) _(72.5)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 748 741
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 - {24 9)
Expenditure on developed software 7 {47.2) {34.2)
Reduction in restncted cash 22 - 0.5
Purchase of third party software 7 {1.5) {4 4)
Purchase of properly, plant and equpment 8 (11.6) {6.5)
Net cash flow used in Investing activities {60.3) {69.5}
Financing activities
Repaymeni of borrowings 22 {12.8} (13.1)
Net cash flow used in financing activities {12.8) {13.1)
Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents in the year 1.7 (8.5)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 40.3 50.8
Differences on exchange ~ {0.3) {20}
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 a7 403
The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenls

16
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The Company is a "Sociélé 3 Responsabilité Limiée’, domiciled in Luxembourg. The Company's country of
ncorporation is Luxembourg and its registered address is 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L -1273 Luxembourg

Nature of entity operations and principal activities

The Group's prncipal achwities are the development, management and hcensing of a vanely of software
producis and sotutions to customers in the financial services indusuy

Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS tC") interpretations as adopted by the EU and in accordance with Luxembourg laws and
regulations

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. | also requires management to exercise Rs judgement in the process of applying the Group s
accounting policies

Going concern

The Group's forecasts and proechions, taking account of reasonable potenlial vanations m trading
performance, show that the Group is expected to operate within the level of is current financing facilibes for
the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Group has considered bank covenant compliance and
the abilty to operate within thase covenants with adequate headroom to take inte account risks in future
axpected cash flows

After making enquines, the Managers of the Company have a reasonable expectayon that the Group has
adequale resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For thus reason, they
continue to adopl the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements,

Changes in atcounting policy and disclosures

New and amendad stangdards adopted by the Group
The foliowings IFRS and IFRS IC interpretations and amendments have been adopted by the Group, but nong
had any matenal impact on the Group results or financial position.

s Amendment to iAS 19, ‘Defined Benefit Plans' - Empioyee Contributions,
« improvements to (FRSs 2010-2012; and
+« lmprovements to IFRSs 201t-2013.

New standards, amendments and interpreiations noi yet effective

The following new standards, interpratations, improvemants and amendments to existing standards have baen
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting penods beginnmyg on or after 1 June 2016 or fater
periods The Group has decided to not early adapl these:

« {FRS 9 ‘Finangial instruments {not yet endorsed oy the EU);

« Amendments fo IFRS 10 'Consolidated financial statements® and IAS 28 ’Investmants in associates
and joint ventures' on Investment entihes and applylng the consolidation exceptions (effective from 1
June 2018},

« Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and IAS 28 'Investments in assowates
and joird ventures (not yet endorsed by the EU),

« Amendment fo IFRS 11, ‘Joinl errangements’ on acquisiion of an intersst in a joint operation
{effectiva fram 1 June 2016};

» Amendmentio IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment’ relating to depreciation and amendment to IAS
38,'Intangible assets’, on amortisation (effective from 1 June 2018),

17
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

+ Amendment to AS 27, 'Separale financia) statements on equity mathods' (effectve from 1 June
2018);

= Annual improvements {2014) (affective from 1 June 2016),

« Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ disclosura inttiative (effactive from 1 June
2018);

+  Amendments to IAS 12, ‘income taxes' on Recognition of deferred lax assefs for unrealised losses
{not yet endorsed by the EU), and

» Amendments 10 IAS 7, -Stalement of cash fiows on disclosure initative’ (not yet endorsed by the EU)

The Group has undertaken an infiai rewvew of the impact of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments and has concluded that they are unlikely to significantly impact the Group's resuits or financial
position

On 28 May 2014, the Internalional Accounting Standards Board (“JASB”™) Issued IFRS 15 'Revenue from
contracts with cusiomers'. The standard 15 expected to become effective for the Group’s accounting period
beginning on 1 June 2018, subjecl to endersemaent by the EU The Group 1s analysing the potential impact of
the standard on its consolidated financiel siatements

In January 2016, |IASB pubhshed IFRS 16 “Leases’ (not yet endorsed by the EU) The standard is expected to
bacome effective for the Group's accounting period beginning on 1 June 2019 (with earlier adoption permitted
if IFRS 15, "Revenue from Coniracts with Customers’, is also applisd). The Group is analysing the potential
impact of the standard on its consolidated financial stataments

A summary of the Group’s accounting pelicies is given below.
Accounting convention

The consolidated financial information has been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except for
certain items which are measured at fair value, as disclosed in the accounting policies below. These
accountiing policies have been cansistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Baslis of consolidation

The Group's financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Misys Newco 2 S.4 rl. and ds
subsidiary undertakings On acquisition, the assets, liabiives and contingenl liabiiies of a subsidiary are
measured at thew fair value at the date of acquisiticn

Subsidianes are all entiies (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group Is exposed to, or has nights to, vanable retumns from its involvement with the
entily and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity,

Subsidiary undertakings acquired during a year sre inchuded in the financial statements from the date al which
controt passes to the Group. Subsichary undertakings disposed of are included In the financial stalements up to
the date at which control passes from the Group. Accordingly, the consolidated mcome statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated statemsnt of cash flows inclede the
results and cash fiows for the period of control

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactons between Group
companies are eliminated

18
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Misys Newco 2 8.4 r.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Revenue recognition

Revenue represenis the far value of consideration recerved or recevable from customers for services
provided by the Group, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes Revenue is recognised when a
legal nghi lo consideration exists and can be reliably measured, debvery to a customer has occurred with no
sigmificant vendor obligattons remaining and where the collection of the resultng recervable 1s considered
prabable

Where these clrcumstances exist but no invoice to the customer has been rarsed, under the terms of the
contracts, revenue 15 recognised but the corresponding receitvable is shown as accrued income in the
consolidated statemenl of financial position.

The Group generates revenue as follows

= Licence fees,

= Maintenance fees,

« Profgssional Services, and
- SubsCﬂpﬁonS

Revenue 15 recognised in accordance with 1AS 18 - “Revenue’. In determining the amount of revenue to be
recognised, management exercise judgement, and also adopt eshtmatas in reaching certain conclusions,
Management considers guidance from software industry common practice in forming its estimates

Licence fees

The Group grants its customers hcences to use its softwara This revenue can relate to (a) initial Licence Fee
("iLF™), where a foe relates to the nghl to use a software product, inciuding significant upgrades pertaining to
customers purchasing new modules or user rights; and (b) Roadmap Accelerator {"RA™), where a fee is
payabie for a significant variation of an existing product.

Where a icence s not subject to matenal modification or customisation certain cnierla must be met before
revenue is recogmsed-

Arrangement existence 15 avidenced;

Software has passed intemal quality checks and is deemed generaily avadable,

Delivery to the customer has occurrad;

Risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the Group to the customer,

Revenue, and associated costs, ¢an be messured reftably and are not subject to further adjustment;
and

s Collection from the customer is deemed probable

In instances whers significant vendor obligations exist, ravenue recognition is deferred until the obligation has
been satisfied No revenus Is recognised for multiple deliveries or mulliple element products if an elemeni
remains undelvered and 1s essential 1o the functionahty of the efements already delivered.

ILF on heavily customised software, together with associated PS ravenus, are treated as a singfe deliverable
and recognised on a perceniage of completon basis over the period from commencement of performance to
customer acceplance

Maintenance faes

Maintenance of software 15 often included i licence agreements The pricing 1s usually based on a percenlage
of the ILF, which is common practice in the industry The Maintenance fee provides customers with rights to
unspecified product upgrades, enhancements and help desk access durng a defined suppont period. This
revenue ls recogaised rateably over the term of the contract

19
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l
Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Professional Services

Revenue is generaled from traiming, cansulting and implementalion services These services are reflected i
separate coniracts {o hcence contracls and can be erther on a tme and materials or fixed-pnica basis A
percentage of completion approach is adopted to account for fixed-price contracts, which 1s in accardance with
the rules applicable lo long-term contract sevenue recognilion in IAS 11 - Construchon Contracts’. This
involves a comparison of costs incurred to date with total expecled costs of the contract. Losses on contracts
are recogrused at the pont a loss 8 foreseen by reference to estmated costs of completion

Subscripions
In addition to the revenue slreams above, the Group earns other revenues as follows:

» Hosting revenue is generated by way of an additional subscnption fee payable to the Group to provide
a software hosting service Fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contracl;

» Cloud revenue is generated whereby the customer pays a subscnption fee to cover the software,
maintenance and hosting service Fees are recognised on a streightine basis over the term of the
confract, ang

s Leasing revenue is generated by way of grantng customers hcence access, and providing
maintenance supporl. Fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Multiple element arrangements

The Group often enters nio transactions with customers lhat include muitiple elements such as software
licence, mamtenance and professional services revenues The revenues from these armangements are
generally accounted for separately. The factors considered in determining whether the revenue should be
accounted for separately include the nature of the serices. the existence of the farr value for the separable
slements, the timing of payments 2nd the acceptance crileria on the abliny to realise the software licence fee

Revenue from mulliple element arrangements Is allocated to the different elements based on thewr fawr value.
Fair value for professionat services is determuned by market pricing for equivalent performance obligation sold
separately or the "cost pius reasonable margin™ methodology when market data does nol axist.

When revenue is objectvely determined for all undelivered elements with the exception of one delivered
element, the residual methad is used to ellocate revenue to the delivered element Revenue for defivered
elements 15 recognised when the revenue recognition criteria descrbed above are mel and revenue is free
from any future uncertainties or adjustments atirfbutable to the undelivered elements from which a portien of
the fees have been allocated. Revenug for any undelivered elements is deferred and recogrised when the
product is delivered or over the period in which the service is performed

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined contribution penslon schemeas covering the majorily of its employses
The costs of these pension schemes are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred. In
addition, the Group has a closed-funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK, as well as a number of
other smaller defined benefit arrangemenis outside the UK.

The remaiming active members of the cipsed UK defined benefit scheme now contnbute to a defined
contribution section of the scheme and do not accrue fufther benefits under the defined benefit scheme. Full
independent actuarial valuations cf the defined benefit scheme are carried out on a regular basis and updated
at each reporting date. The assels of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

Pension scheme assels ara measured at fair value Pension schemae llabifities are measured using a projected
unit method and discounted at the current rale of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivatent term
and currency to the liability The pension scheme surplus (io the extent thal it Is recoverable) or deficit is
recognised in full on the consolidated statement of financial position. Any current or past service cost and
administraion expenses are recognised in the consolidated income statement as are the net interest on the
schemes” liabiltties,
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in the stalement of comprehensive income as they anse.

L.eases

Leases in which substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
8s operating leases Payments made under operating leases such as rentals, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, taking nto account the benefit of any
rent-free period or other incentives

Leases of properly, plant and equipment where the Group has substantiglly all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is
capiialised 1n the consolidated statemenl of financial position at the lower of cost or present value of the
mimmum lease payments and is depreciated over its useful iife. The captal elements of future obligations
under leases are inciuded as liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial posilion.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation $0 as to
achieve a canstant rate of return on the remaining balance of the liabiiity

Taxation

Taxation compnses the amount chargeable on the profits for the year, together with deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is recognised, using the habilly method, in respect of all temporary differences ansing
between the tax basis of assets and habilites and their carnang amount in the financial statements.

Deferred lax assets are racognisad only to the extent that it ts probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits from which the underlying temporary differences can be offset, or whera there are deferred tax habilities
against which the assets can be recovered

Deferred tax 15 measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the penoeds in
which the related deferred tax asset 1s reahsed, or the deferred tax hability is settled based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively anacted at the reporting date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced or increased
according to the level of probable fulure profits considersd available Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporling date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovared.

Current and deferred lax 15 recognised i the conschdated income statement except when the tax relates o
items charged or credited diractly to the statement of comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which
case the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensivs Income or directly in equily

Foreign currencies

lems included in the financial statements of Group entifies are measured using the currency of the pnmary
economic environment \n which each entty operates, known as the funcuional currency The consohdatad
financial statements are presented in US Dellars as this 15 considered to be the currency of the primary
economic envirenment of the Group,

Forengn currency transactions are translated info the functional curmency of the subsidiary using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resuling from the seltlement of such transactions, and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monelary asseis and lhiabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are recognised m the
consohdated income statement within "Operating expenses

Goodwill and mtangible assaets racognised on the acquisitian of entities whose functional currency i1s not US
Dollar is treated as an asset of that enlity and translated at the closing rale.

21
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l
Notes to the consoclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The Group hedges its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks using denvalives and foraign currency
borrowings Defails of the accounting policies in respect of these {tams are given i the derivative financial
Instruments section,

Transiation of Group companies

Financial statements of subsidianes whose functionat currency 15 not the US Dollar are translated into US
Dallar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporling period for stems In the statement of financial
posttion, and at average exchange rates for consolidated income statement items.

All effecls of exchangs rale adjustments are recognised in the consolidated income statement, with the
exception of exchange rate adjustiments of investments in subsidianes ansing from,

« the transiation of foreign subsidiaries’ net assels at the beginning of the year o the exchange rates at
the end of the reporting penod;

« the lranslation of foreign subsidiaries’ statement of comprehensive income from average exchange
rates to the exchange rates at the end of the reporting pencd:; and

= the translation of non-cument mtra-Group balances that are considered to be an additon to net
investments in subsidiaries.

Thess specific exchangs rate adustments are rgcognised in other comprehensive income.

If the subsidiary undertaking Is subsequently sold or closed, cumulative gains or losses recognised n other
comprehensive income arée recycled to the consolidated income stetement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal. if a non-currant intra-Group balance is settied or aftered to a point it 1s no {onger considerad part of
the net investment in a subsidiary undertalung, any related foreign exchange gains or losses which had
previously been recorded to the statement of ather comprehensive income are recycled io the consolidated
income statement as part of operating expenses.

Business combinations

The Group usaes the acquisitton method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
fransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary ts tha fair value of the assets transferred, the habllities assumed
and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group The considaration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or ilabllity resulting from a contingent considaration arrangsment. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred Identifiable assets acquired as well as hablilies and conbingent Labihies assumed in a2 business
combination are measured initally at their far vatues at the acquisition date.

On acquisition, specific inlangible assets are identfied and recogmised separately from goodwili and then
amiorised over their estimated useful hves. These inciude such ilems as brand names, customer relationships
and complete tachnology, lo which value is first attributed at the ime of acquisition. The capitalisation of these
assets and related amortisation charges are based on judgements about the value and economic ife of such
items These economic lives for intangible assels are eslimated at between three and fiteen years.

The excess of purchase consderation and the fair value of separable assets and habillties acquired is
aliocated to goodwill and recognised as an intengible asset Goodwill is not amortised but Is reviewed for
mmparment annually, and whenever there 1s a potential indicator of impalrmant. Any impairment 1s recognised
immediately In the consolidated income statement end is not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of a previously acquired subsidary, the ailributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Transaclion costs
Acquisihon-relaled costs are expensed as Incurred once any related contingencles have been resolved.
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Other intangible assets and research and development expenditure

Research expenditura s expensed in the period s which it 15 incurred Expenditure on developed software is
captratised when the Group 15 able to demonstrate all of the following the technical Teasibility of the resulting
asset, the abiity and intenlion 1o complete the development and use or sell it, how the asset will generate
probable fulure economic benefits, and, the ability to measure refiably the expenditure attnbutable to the asset
during its development. Capitalised expenditure on internally developed software is amortised over its useful
economic life in fine with expecied fulure economic benefits, once the related software product s available for
use.

Development costs which do not meet these crieria are recognised in the consolidated Income statement as
Incurred and are not subsequently capitafised.

Development costs that are direclly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique third party
software products contrallad by the Group are recogrused as intangible assels when the following criteria are
met:

it is technically feasible t6 complete the software product so that it will be avaidable for use,
Management intends to complete tha software product and use or sell &

There 15 an abihty to use or sefl the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the saftware product wilt generate probable future economic benefits;
Adeguate technical, financisl and other resources to compiete the development and to use or sell the
software produci are available, and

»  The expenditure attnbutable 1o the software product during tts development can be reliably measured.

Directly attnbutable costs that are capitalised as part of the softwara product inciude the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Devalopment costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in @ subseguent peried.

Computer soflware development costs recognised as assets are amortised over therr estimated useful lives,
which is between three and seven years Costs associated with mamtaining computer software programmes
are recognised as an expense as Incurred.

Intangible assets purchased separately, such as software licences that do not farm an integral part of related
hardware, are capilalised at cost and amortised over their useful economic hves,

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination are mitially measured at fair value and amortised
on a systemalc basis that reflects the pattern of benefits expected over therr useful economic lives. If the
pattern of future benefits canno! be determined reiiably, the inlangible assets are amoriised on & siraight-line
bagis. The amortisation perlod is reviewed annually,

Estimated useful ives by major class of assets are 3s follows.

Complete technology 3-7 years
Customer refahonships 4- 15 years
Other acquired intangibles 2-15 years
Intemally developed software 3-5Svyears
Thurd party software 3-7 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the onginal
purchase price of the asset and the cost atinbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intendsd use. Deprociation 1s calculated on a stralghl-line basis so as to write off the cost, less estimated
residual value of each asset, over its expectad useful life.

23

g,



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.a r.i.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The residual values and useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually. Tho
useful hives by major class of assel spphed from the date of purchase ars.

Buidings 20 - 30 years
L easehold improvements 5+ 15 years or the panod of the lease If shorter
Computer and other equipment 4 - 15 years

Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amorisation are reviewed for imparment whanever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable and annually in the fourth
quartar

Goodwill and developed software nol yet brought Into use are reviewed for impairment annually. For the
purpase of impalmment testing, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for which goodwill is aliocaled and
goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs expected o benefit from the synergles of the combination.
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for mpaimment annually, or more frequenily when there
Is an indication that {he unit may be impaired {f the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated 1o lhe urut, and then to the other assels of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the und. Prior impairments of assets (other then gocdwill) are reviewed for possible reversal
annually.

An impairment loss is recegmised for the amourt by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset s fair value less costs (o sell and s value in use

Any gatn or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year the asset is de-recognised.

Financral assets

Financial assets are classified in the following cetegones “at far value through profit or loss™; “loans and
receivables’, and ‘avallabie for sale’.

‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss® are financiat assets held for rading or where designated
as such on original recogmtion. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedges Gains and losses arsing from changes wn fair value of ‘financial assets at falr value
through profit or loss' are included in the consofidated income statement in the penod in which they arlse.
Financial assels at fair value through profit or foss are subsequently hetd at fair value

-Loans and receivables’ are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detarminable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are carried at emortised cost.

‘Avallable for sale* financial assets are measured at falr value. Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in
equity except for impairment losses, interest and dividends arising from those assets which are recognised in
the consohdated income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash held at bank and in hand together with short-term highly figuid
tnvestments with an ariginal maturity of less than three manths that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant changs In value

Restricted cash

Restricted cash Is disclosed separately on the face of the consoldated statement of financial position and
denoted as restncted when it is not under the exclusive control of the Group
24
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recogrised inltially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cosl using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment

Whare thare is objective evidence that there is an impatrment loss, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective mierest rate The amount of loss s recagnised m the consolidated income statement within
operating expenses The carrying amount of a recervable is reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts through the use of an allowance account for trade receivables. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are wniten off when there 15 ne expectation of further recovery. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously wrtten off are credited agamst operating expenses i the consclidated income statement,

Investments

Equity investments are classified as ‘fair value through profit or lass' Gains and losses arlsing from changes in
far value are included in the conschidated ncome statement in the period in which they arise

Financial liabitities and equity instruments

Financial liablilles and equity instrumenis are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered 1nto. An equity instrument 1S any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its habilities

Trade payables

Trade payables are recogmsed initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorbsed cost using the
effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or construchve obligation as a result of past
events, and # is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required io settle the obligation and this amount
is capable of being reliably estimated. If such an obligation s not capable of being reliably estimated, no
provision 1s recogmsed and the item 1s disclosed as a contingent llabiity where material

Onerous property contracts

Provision for cnerous lease commitments on property cantracts is made when a property is na longer used by
the Group, and is based on an estimate of the nel unavoidable lease and other payments in respect of these
properties, including dilapidation costs  These compnse rental and gther property costs payable, plus any
terrmination costs, less any income expecied to be derived from the properiies being sublet The provisions are
discounted at an apprepnate rate 10 take mto account the effect of the time value of money.

Borrowings

Borrowings constst of term loans, overdrafis and other short term faciiies, and are imtially recognised at fair
value less directly atinbutable fransaction costs, and are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest rale method. The difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemphion value 1s racognised i the conschdated ncome statement, within finance costs, over the penod of
the borrowings Borrowings are classified as cument hzbilities vnless the Group has an unconditional nght o
defer selliement of the liabilty for at least 12 months after the reporting date
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Preferred Equity Certificates

The Group has additional financing in tha form of PECs issued to the immediate parent company, Misys
Newco S.a2 rl The PECs are repayable in cash within 2 period of up to 49 years fram inception and have a
contractual requirement to accrue and pay interest, and accordingly have been classified as a liability.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial Instruments are intizlly recognised at fair value on the date a denvative 18 entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the naiure of the tem bemng hedged
Changes in the fair value of dervative financial instruments, where they are not designated as hedging
instruments, are recogmsed In the consolidated Income slalernent because the requirements that permil
hedge accounting In certain circumstances were nol salished.

Cenrtain forecast non-US Dollar cash flows of the Group in key cumrencies are hadged with forward currency
contracts Hedge accounting is not apphed and the gains and losses are recarded in the consolidated income
statement w operating expensas

Certain financial assets and liabilities, which are denominated in currencies other than those of the functionat
currencies of the entihes concemed, may also be hedged using forward currency contracts. Gains and losses
on these contracts are recorded in operating expenses logether with offsetting gains and losses on the
undertying items

Embedded denvatives

Certain long-term software licensing contracts are pneed in currencies which are not the functional currencies
of the entities entering nlo the contracts or are not common contracting currencies in the location in which the
transaction 1akes place. Such contracts are considered lo contain an embedded foreign currency dernvative
which musl be extracted from the host contract and measured separately al each reporting date

Gains or losses on embedded denvatives are charged or ¢rediled to the consohdated income statement The
confracts are generally of up to 10 years duration and this 1s therefore the period over which the asssts and
iabilihes recognised in the consclidated statement of financlal position are expected to crystalise

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly sttribulable to the issue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in egquity as a deduction, nst of tax, from procesds

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised unti! there 15 reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants wil be received The effect of grants, which include certain
ncantives structured as RED credits, is to reduce the value of the asset of expense.

Government grants whose primary condition 15 that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-curtent assets are disclosed as a hability in the consolidatsd staternent of financial posiion and
rransferred to profit or 10ss on a systematic and rationiai basts over the useful tives of the related assets.
Critical accounting estimates and judgemaents

in making estimates and assumptions, actual gutcomes could difer from those assumptions and estimates
The cntical judgements that have been made in amiving at the amounts recogmsed in the Group s financial

staternents, and the key sources of estimation uncertainly that have a significant risk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and habllities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Revenue recognition

The recogniton of ILF revenve is dependent upon fair value allocation, separability of components,
collectability and there being no significant vendor obligations cutstending. Management exercises judgement
in assessing whether such obligations are significant and, if necessary, the value of the revanue o be
deferred. Such revenue is recognisaed on signing only for products which are judged to be in a state fit for
gencral availability and ready to be shipped, to contain ali planned components and to have compialed quahty
testing.

The revenue and profit of fixed-pnce Professiona! Services contracts 15 recognised on a percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of 8 confract can be estimated rehably. Managemant exercises
Judgament in dentifying onerous senice contracts and determining whether a contract's outcome can be
estimated reliably Management also makes estimates in the calcutlation of future contract costs, fair values of
contracts, the value of discounts given, the value of upgrade clauses in contracis which are used In
determining the value of 2mounts recoverable on contracts, and timing of revenue recogniion. Estimates are
continually revised based on changes in the facts relating to each contract

Imparment of googwill and intangible assets

Goodwiil and other intangible assets are reviewad annually far mpaiwrment  An impairment review requires an
estimate to be made of the "value in use’ or the *fair value less costs to sell’, as appropnate. The value in use
caiculation includes estimales about the fulure financial performance of the cash generating units, including
management's estimates of long-term operating margins and long-term growth rates In the current periad,
management has assessed the recovarable amount of the cash generating units based on therr vaiues in use
and have wdentfied an imparmeant in relation to the carrying value of goodwill allocated to the Fusiontnvest
CGU. On an aggregeted basis, the Group has a significant surpius on the carrying valug of its CGUs. A
reasonably possible change in the assumptions used has been considered and is unhikely to result in any
additional impairment.

Capitalisation of development! costs
Expenditure on developed software is capitalised when the Group s able to demonstrate all of the following:
the technical feasibility of the resulting asset; the ability and intention to complete the development and use or
sell ii; how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits, and the abifity to measure reliably the
expendilure attributable to the assat during its development. Managemasnt estimatas the future sales and long-
term operating marging of the asset.

Onerous property contracts

Property provisions require an estmate lo be made of the net presant value of the future costs of vacant and
sublet properties. The calcutation includes estrnates of fulure cost invoived, including management's
estimates of the long term letting potentiai of the properties.

Taxation

A good tax control framework 15 @ standard global requirement for the Group to base the muitiple tax filings it ts
required to make to authontes globally Management use this documented process to review key judgements
and nsk areas to determipe the financial statement impact from those filings with parbcular areas of focus on
future mcome flows, the acbkviliss baing undetaken in the Group's enblies compared to ther financal
statement resulis and the mpact of changes to the tax reguiatory landscape with new tax laws being
introduced The recognition of deferred tax assets requires an evaluation of ihe extent to which i is probable
that future profits will aflow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Tax losses i Luxembourg have been
recognised In full where they can be offset following the assessmant of future trading profitability at an entity
level

Tax eshmales 2nd judgements are regularly reassessed and changes n the expected financial statement
impact accounted for in the period in which the reassessment 1s made
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Provision for the impairment of trade recewables and accrued incoms

Provision for the impaiment of trade recewvables and accrued mcome requwes an estimate for the
recoverabilty of the outslanding receivables and accrued income keeping in view vanious implementation
challenges, disputes with customer, customers sxpertencing financial difficulty end receivables which have
become significantly aged Management's esimates include reasonable resolution of these matters along with
cusiomer financial standing Lo ensure that the trade receivabla will be collecled.

Panstons

The present value of the pension cbligations depends on a number of faclors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptons used in determiring the net cost (income) for
pension mclyde the discount rale, Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amounl of
pension obligations

Research and development credils

The Group annually files claims for R&D credits in muitiple junsdictions, and management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount refies upon procedures in place to support the assessmen! and documanted processes
and controls to support thesc clams,
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1 Revenue

Revenus by actinity is 85 follows

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

alt figures in § mulltlons 2016 { _ 2015
Licence fees 2531 2054
Maintenance fees 458.5 474.5
Professional Services 154 4 164 4
Subscnptions 34,2 36.2
800.2 880.5

The Group 15 exempt trom IFRS 8, -Operating Segments’, and accordingly 1s not required to present

segmental information
2. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are comprised of the following

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in § mildons Nole 2018 2015
Actquisiion and integration costs 0.8 11
Restructuring related charges 14.7 224
Goodwill impatrment 6 26,7 600
Amortisation of other ntangible assels 7 1958 210 2
Depreciahion of property, ptant and equipment 8 10.2 98
Capitalised software development costs 7 {47.2) {34.2)
Capitalised software development costs written off 7 - 33
Investor management fees 25 2.7 1.4
Realised trading foreign exchange loss / (gakn) 0.1 {12)
Net other foreign axchange (gain} / foss 1.9 94
Reclassificalion of foreign exchange on liguidation or (32.3) 22
disposal of overseas subsidianies - -
Gain on forward currency contracts 11 {0.4) {37 3)
Gain on embedded derivatives 11 {1.8) (7.9)
Emgployee costs below  367.8 363.2
Other operaling expanses below  206.1 221.8
745.1 824.2
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Employee costs comprise of

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures in § mitions 2016 2015
Wages, salaries and bensfits including redundancy costs 317.9 307.7
Social security costs 353 388

Pension cosis

Defined contnbution plans 13.1 15.8
Defined benefit plans 1.5 0.9
367.8 363 2

Remuneration of Managers and key management personnel 1s disclosed in note 25 The average monthly

number of psople employed by the Group dunng the year was 4,720 {2015 4,635}

Other operating expenses include:

Year Year

ended anded

31 May 31 May

3ll figures 0 § mdllons 2016 2015
Sales commssions and sales relaled bonus 34.2 291
Third party royalty fees 14.1 17.2
Agency fees 44 41
Subcontractor costs 35.5 375
Direct sales costs 1.7 17
Marketing expenses 8.1 99
Travel expenses 333 31.8
People relaled expanses 5.8 6.3
Occupancy cosls 21.9 327
Information systems costs 30.0 3089
Legal and professional costs 10.6 114
Other costs 0.4 9.2
206.1 2218

During the year, the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and therr associates.

Yaar Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

&l figures n S mifions 2016 — 2015

Fees payable lo Co.mpanrs auditors and their associates for the audlit of the 07 0.7
consolhidated financial statemants

Feses payable to Company's audiors and their associates for the audit of the 0.4 08

Company's subsgidianas

11 15

Tax services 0.8 Q.7

1.9 2.2
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3. Net finance costs

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
afl igures in § milions Note 2016 2015
Interest expense ’
Borrowings {181 4) {144 5)
PECs 17 {196.9) (174.4)
Accretion of discount on provisions 18 {0.1) {0.2)
Amottisation of financing faciity costs (18.1) (16 8)
Net financing charge relating lo pensions {0.1) (0.2)
Fair value losses on investments 9 - (03)
Qther finance costs (2.2 (7
Finance costs (358.8) {338 1)
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 0.3 -
Fair value gains on investiments 9 0.2 -
Accretion of discount on trade and other receivables 0.4 0.8
Finance income 039 038
Net finance costs {357.9) {337.3)
4. Taxation
Taxaticn on ordinary activiites
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in & milkons MNote 2016 2015
Current taxation
Corporation tax on losses for the year {34.9) {50.2)
Adjustments in respect of prior year {0.7) {55)
Irrecoverable withholding taxes {16.7) {12.1)
Current iaxation {52.3) {67 8)
Deferred taxation 10 100.2 376
Tax credit/ (charge) 47.9 {30 2)
3
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The diffsrence between actual tax income computed using a weighted average rale and the tex computed on
the Group's loss can be explained as follows

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
2016 2015
Loss before taxation ($m) {202.8) | (281.0)
Tax credit / {charge) ($m) 47.9 (30.2)
Tax as a percentage of loss before tax 23.6%) (10 )%
Welghted average tax rate on tha loss before lax 14.8% 15 2%
Tax effects of
Permanent differences {0.1}% {2 9)%
interest expense not deducible for fax purposes {13.7)% (8.8)%
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to changes in tax rates 0.9% 0.1%
Credit / (charge) from changes to the recogmtion of deferred tax assets 32.5% (9.5)%
Adjustments in respect of prior year current tax (0.3)% (20)%
Prior year adjustments for deferred tax (2.3)% 1.5%
Irrecoverable withholding tax (8.2)% (4.3)%
Tax credit / {charge) 23 6% {10.7Y%

The weighted average tax rate is calculated using the underlying statutory tax rales in the lacation where the
profits arise  Deferrad tax movements are described in note 10

A tax credit of $3.5m (2015. charge of $5.8m) related to currency translation driferences has been recognised
N reservas.

5. Business combinations

Acquisilion of CCS

On 8 August, 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued and outstanding membership interests of CCS for a
total consideration of $26 6m ($24.9m, net of cash scquired). CCS Is a sofiware business based in the US
which provides a loan originaten product for the banking sector

The value of the assets and liabilitles acquired in the purchase of CCS and the associated falr value
adjustments refated to those assets are as follows

Fair vatue Fair value at
all figures in $ mulions Book value adjustments 8 August 2014
Intangible assels - 98 98
Property, plant and equipment 02 - 02
Cash and cash equivalenis 17 - 17
Trade and other recevables 1.8 - 18
Accrued income - 0.1 01
Trade and other payables {0.2) - (0.2}
Accruals {0 5) - {0 5)
Deferred Income {12) {2.4) {3.6)
Net assets acquired 1.8 7.5 8.3
Goodwill 17.3
Gash consideration 26.6
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An anafysis of enterpnsae value of CCS is as shown below

8 August
all igures In 3 milions 2014 |
Consideralion paid in cash 26.6
Cash acquired (17
Enterprise value of CCS 24.9

Goodwill ansing on the acquistion of CCS 1s principally attnbutable to future profits from new customers in new
markels and regions, through cross-ssliing opporiunities and the assembled workforce. Costs assoctated with
the acquisition of CCS of $0 8m (2015 $1 Om) are mncludad in operating expenses in the consohdated income
statement

Revenue and profit of CCS were not matenal to the Group s financial performance in 2015 The revenue and
proflt that CCS would have contnbuted had it been consolidated from 1 Jung 2014 would not have been
materal to the Group

6 Goodwll

31 May 31 May
a¥ figures 1n % millons 2016 2015
Cost and net book value at 1 June 1,6141 16863
Differences on exchange 02 {29 5)
Acquisition of CCS (note 5) - 17.3
Impairment charge (26.7) {60.0
Cost and net book value 3l 31 May 1,587.6 1,614.1

Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwili acquired through business combinations has been allocated for the purposes of impaiment testing o
CGUs The Group conducts annual impairment testing on the carrylng vaiue of goodwill, which is based on the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determmed by way of value in use ("VIU) calculations The
determinabon of whether or not googwili has been impaired requires an estimate to be made of the VIU of the
CGU to which goodwill has been aliocated

The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flows of each CGU, based on the approved budget for the year ending
31 May 2017, and medium-term plans for the following four years which are consistert with the recent financial
performance of the retevant CGU. Thereafter, a long term growth rate of 2% (2015. 2%) has been used.

The table betow shows the allocation of the carrying value of goodwill as at the reporting period by CGU-

all figures in § milioas 2016 2015
FusionCapital 655.6 655 4
Fusioninvest 80.7 117 4
FusionBankingCore 4181 4191
FusionRisk 30.0 300
FustonBankingTransaction 219.5 2185
FusionBankinglending 172.7 1727
Total 1,587.6 1,614 1
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Key assumptions

The key assumptlons in the VIU calculations are discount rate applied, operating margin and the long-term
growth rate of net operating ¢cash flows

Discount rate
Discount rates used are pre-tax and refloct specific risks relating to the relevant CGU or group of CGUs. The
pre-tax discount rates applied to CGUs were as follows:

2016 2015
FusionCapital 16.2% 15.8%
Fustoninvest 13.8% 139%
FusionBankingCare 14 8% 150%
FusionRisk 16 1% 186 7%
FusionBankingTransaction 15.5% 14 9%
FusionBanking Lending 15.2% | __ 150% |

Operabng margin
Management determined budgeted operating margin based on prior performance and expectation of markel
development.

Long-term growth rale

Long-term growth rates of net operating cash flows are assumed equal to the long-term growth rate in the
gross domestic product of the country iIn which the CGU’s operations are undertaken, and werg 2% (2015:
2%) for penods beyond the first five years.

Summary of results
The imparment reviews indicated significant headroom on an aggregated basis in comparison to the total
carrying value of lhe combined CGUs

For the MisysFusioninvest CGU, the recoverable amount was less than lts carrying value and an impairment
charge of $26 7m was recognised against the camrying value of s goodwill in 2016, The man driver for the
impairment was lower revenue growth expenenced in 2016 in this product group, and the lower revenue
outlook for the forecast pertod

In the year ended 31 May 2015 the recoverable amount of MisysFusionRisk CGU was less than ils carrying
valug and an impairment charge of $60.0m was recognised agamst the carrying value of ts goodwill The maln
dnver for the imparment was the revenue and opearating margm detenoratton in 2015 expenenced in this
product group, and the lower revenue autiook for the forecast period.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

As part of the ViU testing the Managers constder the impact that a range of scenanos could have on the key
assumptions within the VIU calculation

Discount rate

The Group baseas its estmate for the long-term pre-iax discount rate on its weighted average cost of capital
("WACC"} using long-term market data and industry data to derive the appropriate inputs to the calculation
The Managers consider that a 1.5% change i the absolute discount rate 15 the maximum change that should
ba considered as reasonably possible as this represents an 11% to 12% increase in the WACC
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Operating margin

The Managers consider that a reduction of 5% n the absolute value of long-term aperating margins acrass all
CBUs would be the limit of what could be considered to be reasonably possible on the bass that the Group's
cost base is flexable and could quickly respond to market changes. The Group is spread across a range of
geographies and has a large recuming mainienance revenue stream which help to insulate it from more
significant changes

Long-term growth rats

The Group uses a long-term growth rate ihat is the same as the long-term growth rate of gross domestic
product (GOP) of the lerntonies in which the CGU is based. Glven these are tong-term rates, the Managers
consider a change of 1% in the absolute value of the long-term growth rate to be the imit of what 1s reasonably
possible.

Summary of sensiivity analysis

Sensitivity analyses have been performed around lhe base case assumplions with the conclusion that no
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to be less than the
carry:ng amoumt in any CGU.

7. Other intangltble assets

Other Total
Complete  Customer acquired acquwred Developaed Third party

al figures 1n $ millons technology relationships Intangibles intangibles  software  softiware  Total

Cost

At 1 June 2015 704.9 5480 1584 1,411.3 949 20.5 1,526.7

Differences on exchange o1 - - 0.1 0.2 {1.2) {0.9)
Additions - - - - 472 1.5 48.7

At 31 May 201§ 765.0 548.0 1584 14114 142 3 20.8 1,574.5

Accumulated

amortisation

At 1 June 2015 {400 5) (144.0} (32 1) (576.6) (21 8) (9.5) (607.9)
Differences on exchange - - - - - 06 0.6
Amartisation charges

{nole 2) {114.4) {46.4) {11 2) {172.,0) {19 3) {4.5) (195.8
At 31 May 2016 {514.9) {190.4) {43.3) {748.6) {41.1)  (13.4) (803.1
Net book value

At 31 May 2016 190.1 357.6 1151 662.8 101.2 1.4 7714
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Other Total

Complate Customer acquired acquired Developed Third party
all figures In § mdlions technglogy relationships intangibles intangibles software software  Total
Cost
At 1 June 2014 7005 547.7 157 6 1,405.8 701 18.4 1,494.3
Differences on exchange {20} (2.1) {0.2) {43) 6.1 (23} (12.1)
On acquisition of CCS
(note 5) 6.4 24 1.0 o8B - - 98
Addihons “ - - - 342 44 ass
Written off - - - - {3 3) - (3.3)
At 31 May 2015 704.9 548 0 1584 11,4113 94 9 205 15267
Accumulated
amortisation
At 1 June 2014 (266 8) {87.7) {21 0) (385 3} (8 0} {v6) (4009)
Differences on exchange 05 0.1 - c6 13 13 32
Amorusation charges
(note 2) {134.4) (46.4) {(11.1) {191 9) (15 1) (3.2) {(210.2)
At 31 May 2015 {400.5) (144 0) (32 1} (576.68) {21.8} (95) (607.9)
Net book value
At 31 May 2015 304 4 404.0 126 3 834.7 731 110 9188

Complete technology, customer relationships and other acquired intangibles had a weighted average
remaining life of 21 months (2015: 32 months), 100 months {2015. 112 months) and 131 months {2015 143

months) respectively at 31 May 2016,

8. Property, plant and equipment

Bullding and Computer
leasehold  and other

an figures in $ midlons improvements equipment Total
Cost
At 1 June 2015 21.2 314 52.6
Dhfferences on exchange (03) {(t.1) (1.4)
Additions 54 62 11.6
Disposals - (0.9) {09)
At 31 May 2016 26.3 356 61.9
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 June 2016 (72) (167) {23.9)
Differences on exchange 02 0.9 1.1
Deprecration charges {note 2) (38) (6 6) {10.2)
Disposals - 0.9 0.8
At 31 May 2016 {10.6) (21.5) (3241
Net book value at 31 May 2016 15.7 14.1 23.8
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Buidingand  Cornpuler
leasehold and other

il figures in § millions improvements _equipment Total
Cost
At 1June 2014 237 299 536
Differences on exchange (1.7} 27) {4.4)
On acguisiton of CCS {note 5) - 0.2 0.2
Addibons 08 5.7 6.5
Disposals {16} {17 (3 3)
At 31 May 2015 212 314 526
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2014 {6 4) {12 4) {18.8)
Differences on exchange 0.5 09 1.4
Depreciation charges (note 2) (29) (6.9) {98)
Disposals 1.6 i7 33
At 31 May 2015 (72) (167 (23 9)
Net book value at 31 May 2015 14.0 147 287
9. Investments
all figures in § milkons 2016 2015
Opening balance 2.5 2.8
Fair valug movements 02 (03)
Closing bafance 2.7 25

The Group's investments compnse investments 1n US and European Technology Funds and marketable
securities, which are classified as “fair value through profit or loss”, Fair valug gains and losses are recognised
within finance costs The investmenis are denominated in US Dollar and Euro and is non-interest beanng

10, Deferred taxation

Goodwili and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary deferred tax
all figures in § milions Losses  differences liabllity Total
At 1 June 2015 96 {7 4) (141 0} {138.8)
Differences on exchange - 05 Q0 5) -
Credited / (charged) to the consoldated
income statement (note 4) 69.3 (1.1) 30.1 98.3
impact of change in lax rates taken to the
consolidated income statement (note 4) - - 19 19
Credit refated to components of other
comprshensive mgome - 3.5 - 3.5
At 31 May 2016 78.9 (4.5) {109.5} (35.1)
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Goodwill
and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary  deferred tax
all figures in § miftions Losses differences hability Total
At 1 June 2014 138 {4 6) (179.2) {170 0)
Oifferences on exchange - (01) {0.5} (0.6)
Credited (charged) to the consolidated
incore statement (note 4) {4.2) 29 387 374
Impact of change m tax rates taken to the
consolidated iIncome statement (note 4) - 0z - 0.2
Charge related Lo components of other
comprehensive ncome - {5 8) - {5.8)
At 31 May 2015 96 {7 4) {141 0) (138.8)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilties have been offset The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances {after offset)

alt figures In $ 31 May 31 May
milions 2016 2015
Goodwilit Goodwil!
Other and Other and
temporary  acquired temporary  acquired
Losses differences intangibles Total Losses differences ntangibles Tolal
Deferred tax
assels 78.9 5.1 - 84.0 36 - - 9.6
Deferrad tax
habillies - (2 6) {1025} {119.1) - {7.4) {141 0} (148.4)
As shown above 78.9 {4.5) {109.5) (351) 96 {7 4) (141.0) {138.8)

Included within the deferred tax hability of $35.1m (2015 $148 am) is $109 5m {2015 $141 Om) arising from
acquired intangibles and goodwill This represents the nei future tax habilities ansing from the underlying
goodwill and acquired imangibles The deferred tax hability will reverse by $21 5m (2015° $31 Om) within one
year. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient future
profils in the respective lax jurisdiction to utitise the assels

in March 2016 the UK Budget announced a reduction in the corporate tax rate to 17% from 1 Apnl 2020 from
the previously enacted 18% rate This has not bean substantively enacted at the reporting date and its effect
has not been included in these financlal statements The overall effect of that change, if it had applted at the
reporting date would be to reduce the deferred tax kability by $1 2m and increase the tax credit for the period
by $1.2m.

There conlinued to be significant internabionai focus on fax reform durng 2015/18, including the Orgenisation
for Economic Co-pperation and Davelopment’s (“OECD™) Base Erosion and Profil Shifting {"BEPS °) project to
address mismatches in international rules and European Commission insiatives. The Group will continue to
monitor developments and assess the potential impact for the Group of these and any further tntbatives.

The Group has a number of deferred tax assets thal are not recognised as their utilisation 15 not deemed to be
probable due to msufficient future profits expacted to arise in country or because there are legal restnctions on
their use which prevent the Group begin able to access them The components of the unrecognised assets,
slated gross, are UK caplial losses of $323 4m (2015 $328.7m), Luxembourg corporate tax losses $234.5m
(2015. $357.7m), UK corporate tax losses and other tax deductions not recognised of $5502m (2015:
$402 8m) and tax losses in other junsdictions of $5.1m {2015. $26 1)
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The fotal of these when multiplied by the respective country tax rate gives an unrecognised deferred tax assel

of $226 7m (2015 $254 7m)

14. Derivative financial instruments

All derivalive financlal Instrumants are measured at therr far value and are calculated by reference to the net
present value of fulure cash flows, based on exchange rates and interest rates quoted on international
financial markets, at the reporling dale See note 26 for eddilional disclosure

31 May 31 May
_ L L 2018 2015
all figures in § millons Assets Liabilities Assels Liabillties
Forward foreign currency contracts 7.6 (62) 20.8 (4 0)
Embedded dsnvatives 7.0 (0.5) 5.9 {11
14.6 {6.7) 26.7 {(51)
Analysed as follows.
Current 8.5 (4.9) 185 {40)
MNon-curent 61 {1.8) 8.2 {(1.1)
14.6 67) 267 {5.1)

Forward currency contracts used to economically hedge cash flow risks

Thea aggregate notional amounts of the cutstanding forward foreign currency contracts at 31 May 2016 were

31 May 31 May
gil figures tn § mitions 2016 2015
Euro 248.2 152.2
Pound Sterling 82.0 930
Indian Rupes 478 46.1
Philipping Pese 426 457
Romanian Leu 27.6 -
Auslratian Dollar 17.8 16.9
476.0 3539

Selected expected future non-US$ Dollar key cumrency cash flows of the Group are hedged with forward
cumency confracts. Hedge accounbting 15 not applied as the technical reguirements of 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments’ are not met Gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated income statement within
operating expenses

Durnng the year a $04m gain (2015 $37 3m gain)} was recognised through operating expenses in the
consolidated income staiement in refation o forward currency contracts

Embedded derlvatives

Certain long-term software licensing contracts are pnced in currencies which are not the functional cumrencies
of the entities entering ito the contracis, or are not common contracting currencies in the location in which the
{ransaction takes place. Such contracts are considered to conlain an embedded foreign currency derivative
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporing dats, except where
the currency of the contract is recognised as a common means of exchangs in the country concemed. Gains
or losses on these denvatives are charged or credited to the consalidaled income statement. The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years duration and this is therefore the period over which the assets and habilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are expected lo crystalise.

Dunng the year, a $1 Bm gain (2015 $7.9m gain) was recognised in operaling expenses in the consolidated
meome statement in relation to embedded denvatives,
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12 Trade and other receivables

31 May 31 May
atl figures in § millions 2018 2015
Trade recelvables 250.9 208.4
Less. provision for impairment of rade receivables (8.2} {5.5)
Net trade receivables 2427 202.9
Research and development credits 4.5 17
Other taxation and social secunly 4.4 36
Deposits 2.0 57
Other receivables 11.5 87
Prgpayments 26.8 206
Accrued ingome 984.3 92.6
Current trade and other recelvables 386.2 3358
Research and development credits 17.6 16.6
Deposits 57 i1
Prepayments - 1.4
Accruad income 18.4 128
Non-current trade and other recaivables 41.7 316
Total trade and other receivables 427 9 367.4

The provision for impaired trade receivables relates to receivables from customers in financial difficulty,

customer aceeptance issues and cancelled contracts.,

The accrued income balance 15 stated net of a provision of $10 1m {31 May 2015 §8 3m) for items where
future billings have become uncertain due to specific circumstances with identifiad customsrs

As at 31 May 2018, trade recewvabias of $100 3m (2015. $102 1m} were past due but not impaired These
relate to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default and where commercial
discussions lead management {0 conclude that it remains fikely that the customer will pay without concessions
from the Group. There i no significant concentration of outstanding customer recewvables which is considered

a heightened risk factor by management

The ageing analysis of net trade receivables 1s as follows:

31 May 31 May

alt figures in $ mitlions 2016 2015
0-30 days 142.4 1008
30-60 days 17.5 24.0
60-90 days 18.2 137
80-120 days 114 153
120-180 days 205 az2
QOver 180 cays 334 15.8
242.7 202.9

The maximum exposure to credit risk a1 the reporting date Is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.
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Movements in the Group's provision for impatrment of trade receivables are as follows

altfigures in § miliions 2016 2015
Opening batance {59 (51)
Provision for impairment of recevables (5.9} (7 8}
Receivables written off dunng the year as uncoliectible 31 30
Unused amounts reversed - 38
Differences on exchange 0.1 06
Closing balance {8.2 {55)

13. Share capital and share premium

Allotted, fully paid Share Share
share capital capiia! premium
Numbar of Shrares 3 rmulligns § mithons
At 1 June 2015 and 31 May 2016 20,550 - 10.4

The authonsed share capital at 31 May 2016 consisted of 20,550 ordinary shares with @ nominal value of $1
each (2015 20,550 ordinary shares with a nomunal values of $1 each)

14. Other reserves

Accumulated Translation

ail figures m § milkens losses reserve Total
At 1 June 2014 (691 5} (37.4) {728.9)
Other comprehensive (loss) f income for the year (311 2) 6.1 {305 1)
Reclassification of foreign exchange on liquidation or
disposal of overseas subsidiaries - 22 22
Actuarial gains 08 - 0.5
At 31 May 2015 {1,002 1) (29.1) {1,031 2
Other comprehensive {loss) / income for the year (154 9) 47 (150.2)
Reclassification of foreign exchange on fiquidation or
disposal of overseas subsidianes - {32.3) {32.3)
Actuanal gains 0.9 - 0.9
At 31 May 2016 {1,156.1) {56.7) {1,212.8
15 Trade and other payables

31 May 31 May
all figures 1n § mitions 2016 2015
Trade payables 53 8.3
QOther laxation and socral security 14.2 23.5
Other payabies 4.6 84
Accrusd expenses 123.2 142.4
Current trade and other payables 147.3 182.6
Non-gurrent accrued expenses 7.3 88
Total trade and other payables 154 6 1914
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Accrued expenses compnsa

31 May 31 May
Al figures In § millions 2016 2015
Third party royalfies and agency fees 171.7 17.4
Staff related costs {including sales commissions and bonuses) 79.1 555
Interest expense 10.7 48 6
Rent expense 10.5 130
Other operating cosls 12.5 18.7
Total accrued expenses 130.5 151 2

16 Borrowings

Borrowings consists of two main categories of extemnal debt, being term loans which are governed by spetific
agreements between the Group and a consortium of lenders as identified in the following breakdown, and
overdrafts and other short term faciities which were not drawn down at 31 May 2016 {2015; nil)

Term loans

31 May 31 May
2ll Ggures n § millions 20186 2015
Term loans 1238 128
Capitalised arrangement fees (12.8} {128
Borrowings - current - -
Term loans 1,847.6 1,857 5
Capitalised arrangement feas (34.6) {538
Borrowings ~ non-current 1,8130 1,803.7
Totat term loans 1,813.0 1,803 7
Capilalised arrangement fees reclassifiad to other recelvables {8.4) (5.3
Bank loans (Note 22} 1,806 6 1,798.4

First Lien credit agraement

+ A $1.029.8m (2015: §1,040.5m) term loan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carries interest
at London Inlerbank Ofered Rate ("LIBOR") + 4% (May 2015 LIBOR + 4%). Prncipal repayments of
$2.7m are made every three months,

« A €184.4m (2015 €186.3m) lerm {oan, maturing on 12 December 2018. The term loan cames interest at
LIBOR + 4 25% (May 2015: LIBOR + 4 25%). Principal repayments of €0.5m are made evary three
months; and

e A 3100m (2015. $100m} Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF"), maturing on 12 June 2017. The credit facility
was unutiised a1 31 May 2016 (May 2015 unutilised) although the Group drew on the facility at vanious
times during the year Repayments of all drawn amounts are made within three months of drawdown and
are available for redrawing unhi malurity.

Second Llen credit agreement

« A $625m (2015, $625m) term loan maturing on 12 June 2019, The term loan was fuily drawn on 31 May
2016 and 31 May 2015 and cames interest at 12.0% {May 2015: 12.0%). No principal repayments are due
daring the term of the loan
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The Group is subject lo ceraln finance covenants under the credit agreements. These specify a maximum
ralio of net borrowings to operating profit, before deprecialion, amortisation and exceptional or nen-recurring
items, deducting capialised research and development costs These covenants have not been breached
during the year. Substantially all of the assets of the Group are pledged as security under the credit
agreements.

No additionat fees were capitalised dunng the year ended 31 May 2016. The unamortised amounts remainmg
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 May 2016 amounted to $53.8m, of which $6 4m
related 1o the current portion which was reclassified to other receivables as it exceeded the current portion of
loans (May 2015 $71 9m, of which $5 3m was reclassified) Amorlisation expense for the year of $18.1m
{2015: $16 8m}is included in finance costs in the consolidated income statement

The fair values are based on future expected cash flows associated with borrowings are shown in nate 26.

Qverdrafts and other shart term faciliies

The Group currenily has access to two short-term uncommitted borrowing facilities orovided by commerciat
banks. The facikties have 2 total avalability of $48.0m and may ba drawn as shori-lerm loans or utilised as
overdraft faclibies on related bank accounts At 31 May 2016, no amounts were drawn against the facilities
(May 2015 3nil} Borrowings under the facilities are secured by pariicipation in the security arrangements of
the First Lien credtt agreement and are subject to annual renewal

17. Preferred Equity Certificates

In May 2012, the Group issued $1,257.1m as a series of PECs, each wilh a par value of $1, to its immediate
parent company. Misys Newco S.a rl. The PECs have a term of 49 years from the date of issuance {effectve
date) but may be retirad earlier at any time by the Group or upon liquidation of the Company The effective
date, mterest rate and outstanding halances for each PEC series are as follows:

all figures in § milions

PEC Effective interest 31 May 31 May
Series date 2016 2015
A 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded monthly 30.8 272
B 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 3.7 2580
C 4-May-12 12.50%, compounded annually 1785 156 6
D 4-May-12 12.50%, compounded annually 272.5 241.8
E 30-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 1,236.7 1,097.7
F 30-May-12 0.00% 5.0 50
G 4-May-12 0 00% 7.5 7.5
Total 1,761.7 1,564 8

Interest of $196 9m accrued during the year (2015 $174.4m offset aganst a related parly recewvavle from
Visla Equily Pariners of $1 2m rasutting in $173.2m capitalisad to the PEC balance on 31 May 2015)
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18. Provisions

all figures in § milions Property Other Total

At 1 June 2015 6.5 0.3 68

Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement

- Additional provisions 28 28 5.6

- Release of unused amounts {1.0} - (1.0)
Accretion of distount 0.1 - 01

Utilisation of provisions (2.7) - (2.7)
At 31 May 2016 5.7 31 8.8

Analysis of total prowision:

Current 26 31 57

Non-curem 31 - 11

Total provisiong 5.7 3.1 B8

alk figures in § mhiions Property Other Total

At 1 June 2014 71 0.8 79

Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement:

- Additional provisions 27 - 2.7

- Releasa of unused amounis (0.2) {02) {0.4)
Accration of discount 0.2 - 0.2

Utilisation of provisions {2.0) (0.2} {(22)
Differences on exchange (1.3) {0.1) (1.4}
At 31 May 2015 65 0.3 6.8

Analysis of total provision:

Current 25 0.3 2.8

Non-Gurrent 40 - 40

Total provisions 85 03 6.8

Property provisions

The property prowvisions compnse the net present value of the eslimated future costs of vacent, sublet and
occupied properties of the Group after taking into account dilapidation obhigations in the lsass. The provision
relating to vacant and sublet propsrties 15 expected lo be utllised on averaga over the next five years.
Provigions released during the year relate to dilapidation provisiens which are ne longer required as those
properties have been surrendered

QOther provisions
Other provisions relate to obligatons following the acquisition of third party software, and open htigation
claims
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19. Deferred income

31 May 31 May
all figures In § miflions 2016 2015
Current

Maintenance fees 246.6 220.0
Other revenue 122 181
228.8 2381

Non-current
Maintenance fees 4.6 33
Other revenue 14.5 12.3
19 1 15.6

Deferrad maintenance fees represent amounts invoiced in advance for contracts which provide technical
support and trouble-shooting assistance in addibon to upgrades and enhancements to the Group's software
products and hardware maintenance Mamtenance fees are recogmsed as revenue ratably as the services are
performad over the period of the contract.

Other revenue represents amounts invoiced pnmanly in respect of Professional Services for which the revenue
recagnition cnteria have yet to be satisfied

20. Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schames covering the majornity of its employees.
The cost of thase pansion schemes was $13 1m (2015. $135 8m) and was charged to the consohdated income
statement as incurred ang included within employee costs There were no outstanding or prepaid contnbutions
at either the baginning or the end of the financial year.

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates vanous defined benefil schemes across the world. The most sigmficant scheme is in the
UK and the disclosures in this note relate to that scheme In terms of the non-UK schemes, these are
summansed below

31 May 31 May
all figures i § milhons 2018 2015
Philippines funded scheme.
Scheme assels 53 47
Scheme fiabibtes (6.2 6.2
Net liability {0.9) {1.5)
Unfunded schemes
United Arab Emirates (2.3) {23}
India (2.1) {18)
Indonesia (0.7) {07)
USA {0-2) {0 4)
Total pension liabilities for non-UK schemes (6.2 (6.7}

UK Retrement Benefits Flan

In 2003/04 the active members of the Misys UK final salary retrement benefits plan (the “Pian”) ceased lo
accrue benefits on the basis of their final salary during the year Thereafter the benefils of the active members
accrue on a money purchase (defined contribution) basts



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l,
Notes to the consoclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The Pian 15 a funded, defined benefit, final salary pension plan The leve) of benefits provided depends on
members' {ength of service and their salary at ther date of leaving the Plan. Pensions in payment receive
different levels of increases, some fixed {at 0%, 3% and 3 5% per annum} and some receiving inflatonary
iIncreases in line with the ncrease in the Retall Prices Index ("RPI”) (subject to cerlam caps and floors). The
benefit payments are from trustee-administered funds. The amounts of contributions to be paid are decided
jointly by the employer and the Trustees of the Plan. Assets held In trust are govemed by UK regulabons and
prachce The Plan's mvestment strategy is decided by the Trustees, in consultation with the employer. The
board of Trustees must be composed of representatives of the employer and plan participants in accordance
with the Plan's legal documentation

The latest full actuarial valvation of the Plan was carried out as at 31 May 2014, the assumptions of which
have been updated to 3t May 2018 by qualified independent actuanes

The amounts recognisad n the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as follows:

31 May 31 May
all figures in § milwns 2016 2015
Present value of funded obligatons {81.8) (83.8)
Fair value of plan assels 92.4 911
Surplus of funded plans 10.8 73
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Total surplus of defined benefit pension plans 10.6 73
Unrecogmsed asset due o limit in IAS 18 ‘Employee benefits’ paragraph 64 {10.6) {7.3)
Liabilty in consofidated statement of financial position - -
The year-end assets and liabilittes in the Plan were:

Of which
not gquoted
on active

all igures i $ millons Total market
Investment funds 58.4 7.2 63.2%
Buy-in contract 33.0 33.0 35.7%
Cash and other 1.0 1.0 1.1%
Total markel value of assets 924 71.2 100.0%
Actuarial value of habilities (81.8)
Surplus In the Plan 10.6
Unrecogmised asset due to limit in 1AS 19 "Employee bunelity’ {10.6)
paragraph 64

Net pension liability at 31 May 2018 -

The Plan does not invest in the Group's own trensferable financial Instruments
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Of which
not quoted
on actwe
eil figuras n § mifllons Total market.
Investmenl funds 56.2 365 61.7%
Buy-in contract 336 336 36 9%
Cash and othar 1.3 13 1 4%
Total market value of assels 911 fi4 100 0%
Aciuanal value of habilities (83 8)
Surplus in the Plan 7.3
Unrecognised asset due to fmit in IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ (73)

paragraph 64

Net pensign liabllty at 31 May 2015

The Trustee of the Plan boughi a bulk annuity policy from Legal & General Assurance (Pensions
Management) Limited tn respect of the Plan's pensioners and thelr dependents as at 14 August 2012, An

estmate of the value of the buy-in contract Is included in the asset value

The market value of assats 1s considered to be malerially the same as the falr value.

Movaement in the Plan assats and obligations dunng the year

Fair vatue
Present value of plan
8l bgures in $ millions of obilgation assets Total
Al 1 June 2015 {83 8) 911 7.3
Interest {expense} / income (27} 27 -
{86 5) 838 7.3
Remeasurements:
Return on plan on assets excluding amounts inciuded in
interest expense - 5.1 51
Gain from changa in demographc assumptions - - -
Gain from change in financial assumptions 27) - (2.7}
Expanence losses 1.0 - 1.0
a7 51 34
Exchange differences 33 (3.4) (0.1}
Payments from plans®
Benefit payments 31 (3.1} -
Al 31 May 2016 {81.8) 924 10.6

The aclvanal gain recognised i the Group's other comprehensive income is 30 9m (2015. $0.6m) which
relates to non-UK schemes (2015: gain from the UK scheme of $0.8m offset by an actual loss in the non-UK

schemes of $0 2m)

Pension costs of $14.6m (2015. $16 7m) were recognised in the Group’s consolidated income statement in
operating expenses for both defined contribution and defined benefit plans,
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Movement in the Plan assets and obligations dunng the pnor year

Fair valus
Present value of plan
all figuras in § mililons of obligation assets Total
At 1 June 2014 (86.2) B5 4 (0.8)
interest {(expense) / income (3.3) 3.3 -
(89:5) 887 ©8)
Remeasuremenls:
Return on plan on assets excluding amounts included in
inlerest expense - 16.7 16.7
Galn from change in demographic assumpfions (05) - (0.5)
Gain from change in financial assumptions (9.2) - {9 2)
Experignce lossas 14 - 14
(8.3) 167 8.4
Exchange differences 7.7 {80) {03)
Paymenis from plans:
Senefit payments 6.3 {6.3) -
At 31 May 2015 {83.8) 91.1 73
The principal assumplions used in the valuations of the Plan are
2016 2018
% %
Inflation (RPI1) 3.0 3.4
Inflation (CPI) 2.0 2.4
Rate of increase in pensions in payment.
Fried 3% 3.0 3.0
Fixed 3.5% 35 a5
RP) max 5% min 3% as 3.7
RPI max 5% min 3 5% 38 3.9
Post 1988 Guarantead minimum pension 18 21
Discount rate for plan liabilifies kN 34

Assumptions regarding fulure morlaily are set based on actuarial adwice in accordance with published
statistics and experience. These assumpbons lranslate inlo an average Wfe expectancy in years for a
pensioner retinng at age 60.

2016 2015

Years Years

Life expectancy for male currently aged 60 293 282
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 304 a3
Life expectancy for male currently aged 40 308 306
Life expectancy for 2 femals currenlly aged 40 32.9 327
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The senstivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumplions s

Change in assumption impact on defined

benefit obligation

{$millions)

Discount rate -0.1% (0 8)
RPI inflation +0 1% (02
Demographic change One yeer increase In life expectancy {(1.8)

The above sensitivity analysis on the discount rate is based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumplions canstant. The change i RPI inflaton assumphon impacts on the Consumer Pnces Index
{“CPI"} assumption, revaluation 1n deferment end pension increase assumptions. When catculating sansitivily
of the defined benelt obligation lo significant actuanal assumptions, the same method {present value of the
defined benefit obligaton calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod}
has been apphed as when calculating the pension hiability recogrnised within the statement of financial position
This is consistent with sansitivities calculated n previous periods

The Pian 1s exposed to a number of nsks, the most significant of which are detalled below:

Assef volatifity

The habities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields If assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The Plan holds a significant proportion of growth assets (e g
equibes, properly, absolute return fund) which are expected to outperform corporale bonds in the long-term
white providing votatiity and rnisk in the short-term The allocation to growth assets 1s monitored such that it 1s
suitable with the Plan's long term objeclives.

Changes in bond yrelds
A decrease in the corporate bond yields wili increase the Plan's liablities, although this wili be partially offset
by an increase in the value of the Plan's bond holdings.

Inflation nsk

The majority of the Pian’s benefit obligations are linked to inflatlon, and higher inflation will lead to higher
habiities (atthough, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary Increases are in place to proiect aganst
extreme nflation) The majority of the assets are ether unaffected by or loosely correlated with Inflation,
meaning that an incraase In inflation will also ncreass the deficit.

Life expeclancy
The majonty of the Plan's ohligations are to provide benefits for the life of the members, so increases In life
expactancy will result in an intrease in the habilities

The Pian uses the buy-in contract and hability matching assets (which includes swaps and cash funds) as

matching assats The remainder of the assels 15 used as growth assets. Funding levels are mondored on a
quarterly basis and the next tnrenmial vatuation is due lo be completed as at 31 May 2017

There are no employer contributions expected to be pad 1o the Pian for the year ending 31 May 2017 The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 15 approximately 16 years

49



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Notes to the consoildated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

21. Net cash flow generated from operations

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figuras in § miflions Note 2016 2015
Operating profit 155.1 583
Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 195.8 2102
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 10.2 9.8
Capualised developed software written off 7 - 33
Goodwill impairment 6 28.7 600
Differences betweean psnsion charge and cash 04 05
contributions
Gamns on embedded denvatives 1 (1.8) (7.9)
Unreahsed foreign exchange gains {16.8) (223)
Movemenls in working capital
(Increass) / decrease in trade and other recewvables (59.8) 10.4
Increase / (decrease) in payables and provisions 0.3 {22.0)
Decreasg in deferred income {4.3) (6.6)
MNet cash flow generated from operations 3058 291.7

22. Reconciliation of movements In net debt

The Group defines net debi as porrowings excluding PECS, less cash and cash equivalents and restricled
cash,

Cash and cash

all figures in $ millions equivalents Restricted cash Bank loans Net debt
At 1 June 2014 50.8 1.4 {1,843 7) (1.791.5)
Acquisitions (24.9) - - (24 9)
Cash flow 18.4 {0 5) 13.1 29.0
Non-cash movements - - (16.8) {16 8)
Differences on exchange {20) - 49.0 47.0
At 31 May 2015 40.3 0.9 {1,798.4) (1,757.2)
Cash flow 17 - 128 14.5
Non-cash movements - - (18 1) {18.1)
Differences on exchange {0.3) - {2 9) (3.2
At 31 May 2016 417 0.9 {1,806.6) {1,764 0}

Restricted cash of 80 m (2015 $0.9m) is not available for the general use of the Group.

Bank loans are inclusive of capitalised loan arrangement fees of $6.4m (2015: $5 3m) which have been
rgclassified to other receivables as descnbed i note 16

23. Contingent liabilities

Contingant habihties that are quantifiable anse from guarantees, lettars of credit and bonds that have been
issued In support of tenders submitted 10 prospective cuslomers Thase amount to $0 9m (2015 $1 1m).

A conbngent liabillty exists In relatlon to the Group’'s defined benefit scheme {(note 20) as a result of the
proposed equalisation of Guaranteed Mimmum Pension ("GMP"}. The UK Government intends to implement
legistation which could result in an increase in the value of GMP for males This would merease the defined
beneifit obligation of the Plan At this stage it 1s not possible to quantify the imgpact of this change
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The Company and ds subsrdianes may be parles to legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of
business Whilst the outcome of current outstanding aclions and claims remains uncertain, it 1s expected that
they wili be resalved wathout & material impact ta the Group's financal position

The Group considers that it is remole that any matenal habilites will anse frorm any other contingent liabiies
which are not idantfied above

24, Commitments

Commitments of the Group under non-canceliable operating leases at 31 May:

2016 2015
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
8l figures in § milhons buitdings equipment buildings equipment
Rental payments due wathin one year 280 0.3 266 0.3
Rental payments due betwsen one ano five years 91.2 0.5 770 02
Rental paymenis due after five years 55.2 - 431 -
Total 174.4 0.8 146 7 0.5

Total future sublease income under non-cancellable subleases is $3.5m due wilhin one year (2015 $4 2m),
$8 7m due between one and five years {2015. $10.5m) and $3 im due after five yeers (2015 $4 9m)

28, Retated party transactions

Parent and subsidiaries
Transactions between the Company and lls subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
cansolidation and are not disclosed In this note

The $1,761.7m {2015, $1,564 8m) PECs balance and associated accrued interest 1s owed to Misys Newco
S a1, the immedsate parent entity of the Group.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Group comprise the Managers and certain other senior management.
Their remuneration is se! out below In aggregate

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures in § milons 216 2015
Short-tarm employment benefits 5.4 8.1
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.1
Termination benefits 0.2 -
5.8 82

The ksy managemenl personnel of the Group were due a discrebionary compensation amount of $1 9m (2015,
nil) at 31 May 2016

The Group epersates a Long-Termn Incentive Plan for key management personne! which has an immaterial
nominal vaiue at 31 May 2016 (2015 immaterial}.
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Other related pariies
During the year ended 31 May 2016 the Group transacted with the following related parties.
Nature of During the Qutstanding
Related Party Relationship transaction year at year end
SumTotal Systems Formerly Vista Equity Purchase of
UK Lirated Partners portfoho company  sofiware 02
TIBCO Software Inc.  Vista Equily Partners Purchase of
portfolio company software 16 -
Vista Censulting Related party Management
Group LLC consulling 2.7 13
PeopteAdmin inc Visla Equily Partners Administrative
portfolio company services 01 -
Advanced Computer  Vista Equily Partners Admirustrative
Software and portfolio tompany services
Solutions Limited 0.1 -

During the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group lransacted with the following related pariles’

Nature of Dunng the  Qutstanding

Related Party Relahonship transaction year at year end
SumTotal Systems Formerly Vista Equity Purchase of
UK Limited Pariners portfolio company  software 0.2 -
TFiBCOQ Software Inc. Vista Equity Partners Purchase of

portfolic company software 0.3 -
Vista Consulting Related party Management
Group LLC consulting 14 0.2
Aptean Corpgoration Vista Equity Partnars Administrative

portfolio company services 02 0.1

The Group paid $0 4m of expenses on behalf of Vista Equity Partners (2015 $0.6m). There is a receivable
balance of 30 6m (2015 $0 2m) from Visla Equrty Partners at 31 May 2016 which was not settled in May
2015, cumulative debt of §12m was settled via a repayment of accrued interest on Seres E PECs as Is
prescribed under the PEC agreement.

28, Financral instruments: risk managemen!

The Group operates a centralised treasury function which is responsible for managing the liquidily, interest
rate and forslgn exchange risks associaled with the Group’s achwities under policies approved by the Board
Treasury policy 13 reviewed and approved annually by the Board and specifies the parameters within which
treasury oparations must be conducted, including authorised counterparties, instrument types, transachon
limils and principles goveming the management of hquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange nsks

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, are cash, shart term deposils, bank loans,
PECs, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables The main purpose of thass financial
instrurents is to raise finance for the Group's operations.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates Internationally and Is exposaed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency
exposures Foreign exchange nsk arises from future commaercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments In foreign operations. The Group reviews the non-US Doliar net cash flow exposure of the
Group and hedges forecast exposures which exceed the imit spacified by management using external forward
coniracts. A portion of the Group's Euro denominated First Lian debt is also hedged using forward currency
contracts at specific rates approved by the Board

The Group's net exposure to foreign currency risk is dlustrated by the sensiivity analysis in note 28
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate nsk on floabng rate loans, overdrafts and cash held on
deposit The Group's borrowings are a mix of floating and fixed rates with variable interest rates set for periods
of three months or fess The Group's vanable rate term loan debt references LIBOR, with a specified floor of
1% Based on vanous scenanos, the Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk using interest rate hedging
instruments such as caps or swaps As at 31 May 2016 the Group held no wnterest rate hedging instruments
(2015 none).

The Group's net exposure to Interest rate nsk is illustrated by the sensitivity analysis in note 29

Credit risk

Credit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposils with banks and
financial institutions, but prmanty from outstanding trade receivables and committad transactions. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history

Denvative and cash transactions are imited to high-quality financial institutions The Group has pofices that
limit the amount of ¢redit exposure {6 any financial institution For customar contracts, the Group and each
reporting subsidiary have specified risk controt and authonsation procedures in place to assess the credi
quality of a customer Where there is no independent nsk rating for a customar, such an assessment takes into
account financial position, past expenence and other factors.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk, with exposures spread over a large number of
customers and counterparties.

Liquidily risk

The Group manages its cash and borrowing requirements centrally to minimisg net interest expense within risk
parameters set by the Board, whils{ ensunng that the Group has sufficent hquid resources to meet the
operating needs of the bustness. The long term farecast cash and borrowings profile of the Group is monitored
fo ensure that adequate headroom remains under current and projected borrowing facilties.

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the
Group's non-denvative financial liabilites.

Less than 1102 2to5 Over s 2016
ali igures m $ mifons 1 year years years years Total
Borrowings and associated interest 1255 149.8 1,906.2 - 2,181.6
Trade and other payables 120.8 - - - 120.8
Total cash flows — 2016 255.3 149.8 1,906.2 - 2,311.3

Less than 1to2 2to5 Overb 2015
ati figures in § milhons 1 year years years _years Total
Borrowings and associated interest 1508 150 2 2,052 6 - 23536
Trade and other payables 155.9 - - - 155 8
Total cash flows — 2015 208.7 1502 20526 - 2,5095

The Group has also issued PECs with a maturily of 49 years as oullined in Note 17 At the reporting date, the
PECs have 45 years outstanding to maturity The PECs have not been taken into account in the above
maturity analysis of undiscounted conltractual cash flows The {otal impact for the PECs in 45 years on an
undiscounted contractual cash flow basis is $377,251 9m (2015 $377,251.9m).

The table below analyses the Group's outflow and inflow from dervative financial instruments into relevant
matunty groupings based on the remaining contractual matunty period at the reporting date The amounis
disclosed in the table are the contraclual undiscounted gross cash flows
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Less than 1to 2 2i05 OverS 2016
all figures in § milions 1 year years years years Total
Denvative financial instruments (gross settled)

- inflows 3765 103 2 25 1.8 484 0
~ outflows {373.1} {103 1) 02 {0 1) {476 5)
Net cash flows - 2016 3.4 0.1 2.3 1.7 7.5
Less than 1to2 2to5 Over$S 2015
all figures in $ mifons 1 year years years Years Total
Derivative financial instruments (gross settled)
- mflows 267 4 105.4 19 22 3769
- outflows (253.0) (101 8) {0 5) (0.2) {365.3)
Net cash flows - 2015 14 4 38 14 20 21.6

Netling arrangerments of derivative financial instruments

The gross far value of denvatve financial instruments as presented m the Group consolidaied statement of
financial position, together with the Group’s nghis to cffsel assacialed with recognised financial assels and
recognised financial fiabifhes subject to enforceable master netling arrangements and similar agreements 1s
summarised as follows

May - ’ ’ ’ “M-ay
e 2016 2015
Gross Amount Gross Amount
2l figuras In $ milions amount presented Net amount amount presented Nei amount |

Financial assets
Forward foreign
curency contracts 78 7.6 58 208 208 189
Financial liabilities
Forward foreign
cumency centracts {6 2) {6 2) {4.4) {40) {4 0} {0.1)
14 1.4 1.4 16.8 16.8 168

Nel amounts show the affect if all amounis were nelted off for each individual counter party under the terms of relevant
ISDA agreements.

Capitat sk

The capitat structure of the Group consists of nel debt, PECs (note 17) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capltal, reserves and retalned earnings as shown in tha consohdated
stalement of changes in equily and note 14. The Group manages its capital with the objective that all entitles
within the Group continue as a going concem while maintaining an efficient structure to mimmise the cost of
capital.

The Group is subject to certain financial covanants under its loan facilities These specify a maximurn ratio of
net dabt to operating profii, before depreciation, amortisation and non-recumng items, deducting capltalised
research and development costs. This covenant has nol been breached during the year

27, Financial instruments: categories

Fair vatue measuremen! hierarchy
Fair value measurements of financial instruments {where relevant) are classified using the following fair value
hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

« Quoted pricas (unadjusted) in actve markels for identical assets or liabilfhes {Leval 1),
« Input other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or habilily, either
directly {i @ as prices) or Indirsctly (i 8. derivad from prices) (Level 2), and
+ Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observabie market data (unobservable inputs) {Level
3)
54
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———— b —— e e

Fair value Non-

Fair value  through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
all figures m § mulions hierarchy’ P&L receivables cost _instrument’| Current  current |
At 31 May 2016
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 27 - - - - 27
Denvalive financial
instruments Level 2 14 6 - - - 8.5 8.1
Trade and other
receivables - 401.0 - 26.9 386.2 417
Restricted cash - 08 - - 0.9 -
Cash and cash
equivaients - 417 - - 41.7 -

17.3 443.6 - 26.8 437.3 50.5
Financial liamlities
Derivative financial
instruments Level 2 (67) - - - (4.9) (1.8}
Botrowings and PECs - - {35747 - - (3,574 7}
Trade and cther
payablies ~ - (140 4) {14.2) [ (147.3) (7.3)
{6.7) - [3.715.1) (142) [(152.2) (3,583.8)
Fair value Non-

Fair value through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
ofi figuras 1n § milions hierarchy' P&L recewables cost  instrument’| Current  current
At 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 25 - - - - 25
Denvative financial
instruments Level 2 26.7 - - -| 185 82
Trade and other
recevables - 345.8 - 21.7] 335.8 316
Rastricted cash - 08 - - 0.9 -
Cash and cash
equivalents i 403 ) o 403 )

29.2 387.0 - 21.7] 3935 423
Financiat habliities
Derivative financiaj
instruments Level 2 (5.1} - - - (4.0) (1 1)
Borrowings and PECs - - (3,368 5) - - {3,368.5)
Trade and other
payables - - {167.9) {23 5)| (182.6) (8.8)
{5 1} - {3,536.4) {23 5)| (1866} (3.378.4)

TFair value hierarchy Shows the fair value measurement calegones as desched balow

assels thal do nol quanfy as a financlal mstrument tncdlude prepaymentts of $26.8m (2015 $21.7m) Labilties that do not quatfy as
financial instrumants are tax and other soclal secunty payments of 514 2m {2015 $23 5m).

a} Financral instryments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in achive markats is based on quoled market prices at the close of
business on the reporting date A market 1s regarded as acbve if quoled prices are readily and regulary
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatary agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occuming rarkel transactions on an arm's fength basis The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group s the current bid price These Instruments are
included in level 1 and compnse invesiments in quoled marketable secunties.
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b} Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not tradad i an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is delermined by using valuation techniques The valuahon techniques maxmise the vse of
obsarvable market! data where it is avalable and rely as little as possible on enbly specific estimates If all
signtficant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the mstrument is included in leve! 2.

Forward exchange rates valualion technique was used to value financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents primanly compnse cash deposits and invesiments. Cash which bears interest at
nominal rates comprises of US Doilar of $16.1m {2015: $16.1m), Pound Sterbng of $0.5m (2015. $3.0m),
Euro of $1.8m {2015. $3.0m) and other currencigs of $23 3m (2015 $18 2m). Restricted cash comprises
$0.9m (2015: $0.9m) denominated In US Dollar and $nll (2015. $nil} in other currencies

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The fair value of foreign exchange denvalives was a nel assal of $2 7m (2015 net asset of $16.8m)

28, Financial instruments: fair values

The fair values of each category of the Group’s financial instruments are approximate to thelr carrying values
in the Group's statement of financial position as the Impact of discounting Is not significant

29. Financiat instruments: sensitivity analysls

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group's prncipal foreign currency exposures are to Pound Stering, Eure and Indian Rupee. The table
below illusirates the hypothehcal sensithvity of the Group's reporied profit and equity for every 10% ncrease
and decrease, in refation to the US Dollar, Euro, Pound Sterling, Indian Rupee and Philippine Peso exchange
rates at the reporting dats, assuming all other variables remamn unchanged. The sensitivity rate of 10%
represents the Managers’ assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable future.

QOutstanding forward contracts used to hedge the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the Group as
dascnbed in nole 26 are included in this analysis it is anhcipated that on maturity of the hedges an underlying
fulure anticipated cash flow exposure will crysialise and offset any gain or loss

Paositve figures represent an increase 1n operating profit.

Consolidated income statement

glt figures m $ milions 2016 2015

US Doltar strengthens by 10%

Euro (10.1} {13.0)
Pound Sterling (3.0} 20)
Indian Rupes 4.4 48

Philipping Pesa az 45

US Dollar weakens by 10%

Eurp 10.1 130

Pound Sterling 3.0 29

indian Rupee (4.4) (4.8}
Philtppine Peso {3.2) {4.5)

Year average exchange rates applied in the above analysis ara Euro 0.80, Pound Sterling 0.67, ladan Rupee
66 21 and Phippine Peso 46.69 (2015. Euro 0.83, Pound Sterling © 63, Indian Rupes 61 91 and Philippine
Peso 44 36).
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Interest rate sensiivity analysis

The Group’s variable rate dedt references LIBOR with a floor of 1% The Group is exposed {o increases mn
interest rates beyond this floor The table befow Hlustrates the hypothetical sensitivily of the Group's reported
profil to a 0 5% increase in Interest rates beyand the 1%, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged The
sensiivity of 0.5% represents the Managers' assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable
future Table below illustrates the Impact on the consolidated income statement for a decrease of 0.5%

ignating the impact of the Group's varrable rate floor of 1%

Consolidated income statement
all hgures mn S miions 2016 2015
Interest rate increase of 0 5% {6.4) (6.7)
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 6.4 67

3D. Subsidiary undertakings

The Company 1s the direct owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voling nights over ali the equity
share capilal of Magic Newco 4 S & rl which has a registered office at 287-289 route d'Arlon, L-1150,

Luxembourg

The Company 1s the beneficial owner end has 100% of the nominal value and voting righls over all the equity
share capital, through subsidiary undertakings, of the below subsidiary undertakings

Company Name City Country
Almonde Inc wilmimgton Unned States
Finance Information et Technologie S.A.S Paris France

IND Group Hoiding Limited Nicosia Cyprus

Kapiti Limited London United Kingdom
Magic Bidco Limited London United Kingdom
Magic Newco 4 S &l Luxembourg City  Luxembourg
Magic Newco 5S arl. Luxembeourg Cily  Luxembourg
Magic Newco LLC Wilmington United States
MIBS Holdings Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Africa Linited London United Kingdom
Misys Czech s.ro. Prague Czech Republic
Misys Egypt LLC Cairo Egypt

Misys Eurape S.A, Luxembourg Cily Luxembourg
Misys France SAS Pans France

Misys Giobal Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Global s ro Bratislava Slovakia

Misys Holdings Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Hungary Kft Miskolc Hungary

Misys (ndia Holdings Limied tondon United Kingdom
Misys International Banking Systems {C1S) Limited London United Kingdom
Misys International Banking Systems A.G Zunch Switzerland
Misys International Banking Systems GmbH Frankfurt Gamany

Migys (nternational Banking Systems Inc New York United States
Wsys Internationat Banking Systems K.K. Tokyo Japan

Misys International Banking Systems Limited Hong Kong City Hong Kong
Misys International Bankmg Syslems Limited Vancouver Canada

Misys International Banking Systems Limited London United Kingdom
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Misys Newco 2 S.a r.l.

Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Document émis électroniquement

Company Name City Country

Misys International Banking Systems Mexico S. A DE CV Mexico City Mexico

Misys International Banking Systems Pty Limited Sydney Australia

Whsys international Financial Systems (Ply} Lunuted Johanneshurg South Africa

Misys International Financial Systems Pte Limited Singapore Singapore

Misys Internationsl Financial Systems S.L Madnd Spain

Mrsys internaticnal Financial Systems SRL Bucharest Romama

Misys International Financial Systems Technology (Beyjing) Limited Beijing China

Misys internabional Systems - informatica Unipessoal Limitada Lisbon Portugat

Misys International Systems Limited Bangkok Thaltand

Misys International Systems Sdn Bhd Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Misys Ireland Limited Dublin ireland

Misys Italy S.r Milan Italy

Misys Limited Loncion United Xingdom

Misys Morocco S ardl, Casablanca Morocco

Misys Netherdands Global B.V, Amsterdam Netherlands

Misys Philippines Inc Makat Philippines

Misys Poland SP Z0O Warsaw Poland

Misys Retirement Benefits Trustess Limmited London United Kingdom

Misys Software Solutions (Indsa) Private Limited Bangalore india

Misys Spain, S L. Madrid Spain

Misys Trade and Risk Management India Private Limited Mumba¥ India

MK Austrahia Piy Limited Sydney Australia

PT Misys Intemational Financial Systems Jakarta Indonesia

Sophis Brasll Servicos De Tecnglogia Ltda Sac Paclo Brazil

Summit Asia Limited London United Kingdom

Troy TRM Enformasyon Ve Yazilim Limited Sirkell istanbul Turksy

Troy TRM Limitad Riyadh Saudi Arabla

Turaz Global S ar.l Luxembourg City  Luxeinbourg

Turaz Global Software EPE Athens Greece

Turaz Global TRM S ari Luxembourg CHy  Luxembourg
The following subsidiaries were classified as “in iguidation” at 31 May 2016

Company Name City Country

ACT Overseas Limued London United Kingdo-rn_

ACT Pension Trustees Limited Londan United Kingdom

ACT Sigmex Limitad London United Kingdom

Almonde Limited London United Kingdom

IDOM Consulting Limited London United Kingdom

IND GmbH Munich Garmany

IND Slovakiasro Bratislava Sipvakia

Misys Finance Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Group Holdings Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Group Pension Trustees Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Internabional Banking Sysiems Limitad Dubiirs Ireland

Misys 1Q Limited Landon United Kmgdom

Misys KBS Linitad London United Kingdom
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Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Company Name B City Country

Misys Nominees Limited London Unied Kingdom
Misys Portfoko Holdings Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Services Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Worcester Lirmtad London United Kingdom
PT Troy Trade and Risk Management Jakaria Indonesia
Sophis Acquisihon Dubiin Irefand

Sophis Holding Oublin [reland

Sophis UK Limited London Untted Kingdom
Summit Systems International Limited London United Kingdom
Froy TRM Pty Lid Sydney Auslralia

Turaz Glooat AS Ostlo Norway

Turaz Limited Londan United Kingdom

31 Ultimate parent undertaking and controfling party

The immediate parent undertaking s Misys Newco S & rl This company files consolidated financial
stalements n Luxembourg

‘FThe party which controls the Company 1s Vista Equily Partners based in USA.

32 Parent undertaking guarantee

Certain UK and German subsidianes in the Group have clected to make use of the audit exemption, for non-
dormant subsidiaries, under section 479A of the UK Companies Acl and by virtue of section 264(3) HGB of the
Garman Commercial Code as relevant, The German subsidiary lisied below has also electad to make use of
the exemplion lo publsh its financial statements n the electronic federal gazette In order to fulfil the
conditions set out in the regulations, the Company has given a statutory guiaraniee of all outstanding habilities
to which the subsidiaries are subject at the end of the financial year to 31 May 2016. The companies which
have made use of the audit exemption as follows

Company name _Company Number Registered office

Kapili Limuted 1841697 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
MIBS Holdings Limited B74912 Cne Kingdom Sireet, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Alfrica Limited 3079792 Cne Kingdom Street, London, W2 68L, UK
Misys International Banking

Systems (CIS) Limited 3259295 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Holdings Limited 1752009 One Kingdom Sireet, London, W2 6BL, UK
Summit Asia Limited 2698761 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 68L, UK
Misys internabional Banking Heddenchstrasse 36, 60584 Frankfurt,
Systems GmbH HRB36797 Gemmany

33 Events after the reporting date

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements no significant or material events affecting
the Group have baen wdentified.
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